
PROPOSED AGENDA 

CHELAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

MEETING OF MARCH 18&19, 2024 

 

MONDAY, MARCH 18, 2024 

9:00 A.M. Opening – Pledge of Allegiance  

 

Public Comment Period 

 

Consent Agenda 

1. Approval of Minutes 

2. Vouchers as submitted and listed 

3. Payroll Changes: 

a) Lisa McCormack, Treasurer – New Hire  

b) Emilia Garcia-Angulo, Assessor – Step Increase  

c) Sara Eggers, Regional Justice Center – Step Increase  

d) Mackenzie Jared, Information Technology – New Hire  

e) Emily Lopez, Juvenile – Resignation  

f) Emily Lopez, Juvenile – Other, Re-hire Extra Help  

g) Caroline M. Siderius, Juvenile – New Hire  

h) Caroline M. Siderius, Juvenile – Promotion  

i) Lisa Dowling, Natural Resources – Resignation  

j) Ronald Scollard, Public Works – Other, End of Season  

k) Kristopffer Perry, Public Works – Other, Cell Phone Stipend  

l) Lawrence Dillin, Public Works – Other, Cell Phone Stipend  

 

Board Discussion  

 

10:00 A.M. County Administrator Cathy Mulhall 

Discussion 

1. District Court Judges RE: Lead Clerk Position 

2. Departmental Update  

 

Action  

1. Grant Services Agreement – 2024 Lodging Tax Funded Activities with Chelan Boys 

Basketball Boosters 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AGENDA   
MARCH 18, 2024 & MARCH 19, 2024 

 

 

NOTE: Agenda subject to change.  Times listed are estimates only. The Commission reserves the right to move agenda items as needed and 
during the meeting. Chelan County Commissioners’ Minutes are available at www.co.chelan.wa.us on the Board of Commissioners web page. 

 

 Page 2 of 5 

2. Grant Services Agreement – 2024 Lodging Tax Funded Activities with Two Rivers 

Medieval Faire 

3. Grant Services Agreement – 2024 Lodging Tax Funded Activities with Wenatchee Valley 

Velo Club 

4. WaTech Service Level Agreement – Statewide Imagery Consortium 

 

10:30 A.M. Natural Resources Director Mike Kaputa 

Discussion 

1. Executive Session RE:  Potential Litigation 

2. Agreement for Construction Management, Payment of and Reimbursement for 

Construction Expenses between Chelan County, Washington Water Trust and Cascade 

Orchard Irrigation Company 

3. Execute agreement and issue notice to proceed to Strider Construction for (a) COIC 

Improvement Project:  Delivery Pipelines and (b) COIC Improvement Project:  Intake and 

Pumping Facilities 

4. Execute agreement and issue notice to proceed to Empire EWP LLC for Malloy property 

well drilling for Malaga Riverfront Park 

5. Revised signature page:  Amended and restated water right purchase and sale agreement 

with Miller Orchard, LLC 

6. Memorandum of understanding with US Department of the Interior, US Fish and Wildlife 

Service amd National Park Service North Cascades National Park Service Complex for 

Coopertaive Development of the North Cascades Grizzly Bear EIS 

7. Execute agreement and issue notice to proceed to Konnerup Construction, Inc., for Beaver 

Creek (Mountain Springs Lodge) culvert replacement project 

8. Supplement to interlocal agreement with Chelan-Douglas Land Trust for Nason Creek 

Rivermile 12 floodplain reconnection design coordination 

9. Contract for professional services with Anchor QEA LLC for Icicle and Peshastin 

Irrigation Districts pump exchange design 

10. Other 

 

Action  

1. Agreement for Construction Management, Payment of and Reimbursement for 

Construction Expenses between Chelan County, Washington Water Trust and Cascade 

Orchard Irrigation Company 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AGENDA 
MARCH 18, 2024 & MARCH 19, 2024 

NOTE: Agenda subject to change.  Times listed are estimates only. The Commission reserves the right to move agenda items as needed and 
during the meeting. Chelan County Commissioners’ Minutes are available at www.co.chelan.wa.us on the Board of Commissioners web page.

Page 3 of 5 

2. Execute agreement and issue notice to proceed to Strider Construction for (a) COIC

Improvement Project:  Delivery Pipelines and (b) COIC Improvement Project:  Intake and

Pumping Facilities

3. Execute agreement and issue notice to proceed to Empire EWP LLC for Malloy property

well drilling for Malaga Riverfront Park

4. Revised signature page:  Amended and restated water right purchase and sale agreement

with Miller Orchard, LLC

5. Memorandum of understanding with US Department of the Interior, US Fish and Wildlife

Service amd National Park Service North Cascades National Park Service Complex for

Coopertaive Development of the North Cascades Grizzly Bear EIS

6. Execute agreement and issue notice to proceed to Konnerup Construction, Inc., for Beaver

Creek (Mountain Springs Lodge) culvert replacement project

7. Supplement to interlocal agreement with Chelan-Douglas Land Trust for Nason Creek

Rivermile 12 floodplain reconnection design coordination

8. Contract for professional services with Anchor QEA LLC for Icicle and Peshastin

Irrigation Districts pump exchange design

11:30 A.M. Economic Services Director Ron Cridlebaugh 

Discussion 

1. Authorization to submit Homeless Housing Planning Grant

2. Contract Amendment with Women’s Resource Center

3. Executive Session RE: Real Estate 
4. Departmental update

Action 

1. Authorization to submit Homeless Housing Planning Grant

2. Contract Amendment with Women’s Resource Center

3:00 P.M.  Board of Health Meeting, Commissioners Overbay and Smith 

TUESDAY, MARCH 19, 2024 

8:45 A.M. KPQ Radio Interview, Commissioner Overbay 

9:00 A.M.  Chelan County Behavioral Health Unit Ana Gonzalez 

Discussion   

1. Departmental Update



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AGENDA   
MARCH 18, 2024 & MARCH 19, 2024 

 

 

NOTE: Agenda subject to change.  Times listed are estimates only. The Commission reserves the right to move agenda items as needed and 
during the meeting. Chelan County Commissioners’ Minutes are available at www.co.chelan.wa.us on the Board of Commissioners web page. 

 

 Page 4 of 5 

 

9:30 A.M.  Public Works Director Eric Pierson    

Discussion    

1. Contract for Herbicide Application on County Roads with Woodland Resource Services, 

Inc.  

2. Contract with SCI Industrial Services, LLC for Dryden Transfer Station Push Pit Floor 

Repair, Solid Waste Project No. 834 (SW 834) 

3. Open Item 

 

Action  

1. Approve Contract for Herbicide Application on County Roads with Woodland Resource 

Services, Inc. 

2. Approve Contract with SCI Industrial Services, LLC for Dryden Transfer Station Push Pit 

Floor Repair, Solid Waste Project No. 834 (SW 834) 

 

10:00 A.M.  Flood Control Zone District Administrator Eric Pierson 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: City of Leavenworth Urban Growth Area Amendments (ZTA-22-419) 

Incorporation of (Ordinance #1651) for County Application in Urban 

Growth Area 

 

10:15 A.M.  Community Development Director Deanna Walter  

Discussion    

1. Departmental Update  

2. Draft Docket 2024  

3. Executive Session RE: Potential Litigation  

 

Action  

1. ZTA-22-419 Approval of City of Leavenworth Urban Growth Area Amendments, 

Incorporation of (Ordinance #1651) for County Application in Urban Growth Area. 

 

11:30 A.M. City of Cashmere Mayor Jim Fletcher 

 

12:00 P.M. Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting, Commissioner Overbay  

 

1:00 P.M.  Washington State Association of Counties Meeting, Commissioner Overbay 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AGENDA   
MARCH 18, 2024 & MARCH 19, 2024 

 

 

NOTE: Agenda subject to change.  Times listed are estimates only. The Commission reserves the right to move agenda items as needed and 
during the meeting. Chelan County Commissioners’ Minutes are available at www.co.chelan.wa.us on the Board of Commissioners web page. 

 

 Page 5 of 5 

 

3:00 P.M.  Link Board Meeting, Commissioners Gering, and Overbay 

 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 20, 2024 

9:30 A.M. Canvassing Board Meeting, Commissioner Smith 

 

11:30 A.M. Pathways Leadership Meeting, Commissioner Overbay 

 

6:00 P.M. District #1 Community Meeting, Commissioner Overbay 

 

THURSDAY, MARCH 21, 2024  

1:00 P.M. Timber Counties Caucus, Commissioners Overbay, and Smith 

 

FRIDAY, MARCH 22, 2024 

1:30 P.M. Canvassing Board Meeting, Commissioner Smith 

 



March 18, 2024 
9:00 A.M. 

Consent Agenda 
 

1) Approval of Minutes 
2) Vouchers as submitted and listed 
3) Payroll Changes: 

a) Lisa McCormack, Treasurer – New Hire  
b) Emilia Garcia-Angulo, Assessor – Step Increase  
c) Sara Eggers, Regional Justice Center – Step Increase  
d) Mackenzie Jared, Information Technology – New Hire  
e) Emily Lopez, Juvenile – Resignation  
f) Emily Lopez, Juvenile – Other, Re-hire Extra Help  
g) Caroline M. Siderius, Juvenile – New Hire  
h) Caroline M. Siderius, Juvenile – Promotion  
i) Lisa Dowling, Natural Resources – Resignation  
j) Ronald Scollard, Public Works – Other, End of Season  
k) Kristopffer Perry, Public Works – Other, Cell Phone Stipend  
l) Lawrence Dillin, Public Works – Other, Cell Phone Stipend  



CHELAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

MINUTES OF MARCH 12, 2024 

 

MONDAY, MARCH 11, 2024- No Session  

 

TUESDAY, MARCH 12, 2024 

9:00:40 A.M. Opening – Pledge of Allegiance  

Chairman Pro Tempore Smith calls the meeting to order. Present for the session are 

Commissioner Gering, County Administrator Cathy Mulhall, Budget Director Nicole 

Thompson, Economic Services Director Ron Cridlebaugh, and Clerk of the Board Anabel 

Torres. Commissioner Overbay is excused from session. 

 

Public Comment Period 

 Robbette Schmit  

 

9:02:08 A.M. Consent Agenda 

Upon motion and second by Commissioner Gering and Smith, the Commission unanimously 

approves the consent agenda as follows: 

1. Approval of Minutes 

2. Vouchers as submitted and listed 

3. Payroll Changes: 

a) Skyler Silsby    Regional Justice Center – New Hire  

b) Lupita Tejeda    Regional Justice Center – Step Increase  

c) Lisa Baker    Regional Justice Center – Step Increase 

d) Logan Crane    Regional Justice Center – Step Increase 

e) Mark Dodge    Regional Justice Center – Step Increase  

f) William Edge    Regional Justice Center – Step Increase  

g) Issac Escalera Mendez Regional Justice Center – Step Increase   

h) Jose Morelos    Regional Justice Center – Step Increase 

i) Christopher Nores   Regional Justice Center – Step Increase  

j) Isaiah Orellana-Abbott Regional Justice Center – Step Increase  

k) Tyler Pilgeram   Regional Justice Center – Step Increase  

l) Jesus Ramirez    Regional Justice Center – Step Increase 

m) Marco Urrutia   Regional Justice Center – Step Increase  

n) Fernando Ponce   Regional Justice Center – Longevity Increase  

o) Gregory Bull    Regional Justice Center – Step Increase  

p) Adrian Pena   Regional Justice Center – Step Increase  

q) Edgar Banuelos   Regional Justice Center – Step Increase 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AGENDA 
MARCH 11, 2024 & MARCH 12, 2024

Page 2 of 6 

r) Mark McLean Information Technology –Step Increase  

s) Cynthia G. Reyes Clerk –  New Hire  

t) Katherine K. Hershey Juvenile – Retirement  

u) Lacy Robinson Natural Resources – New Hire  

v) Isabelle Marie Shastko Parks – New Hire, Extra Help  

w) Linda Peterson Parks – New Hire, Extra Help  

x) Nicole Thompson Commissioners – Step Increase  

4. Approval of Juvenile Department Request to Hire at Step 6

20240312A5-1 

9:12:43 A.M.  Board Discussion 

 Board of Health Meeting

 BearWise

 LTAC Capital Application Deadline March 15, 2024

 District #3 Community Meeting

9:30 A.M.  Public Works Director Eric Pierson   

9:31:39 A.M. Action  

Upon motion and second by Commissioner Gering and Smith, the Commission unanimously 

approves the action items as follows: 

1. Bid Award Re: Dryden Transfer Station Push Pit Floor Repair 20240312B4-2

9:31:45 A.M. Continued Departmental Discussion 

1. Contract with Wheeler Excavation, LLC for Wenatchee Heights Phase II Road

Improvement Project, County Road Project 746 (CRP 746)

2. Call for Bids – Bridge Deck and Joint Rehabilitation Bundle, County Road Project

747 (CRP 747)

3. County Road Administration Board Annual Certification

4. Certification of Diversion and Road Fund Expenditures for Traffic Law Enforcement

5. Leavenworth Brush Yard

6. Event Permit – Gran Fondo Leavenworth

7. Open Item

9:51:44 A.M. Action  

Upon motion and second by Commissioner Gering and Smith, the Commission unanimously 

approves the action items as follows: 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AGENDA 
MARCH 11, 2024 & MARCH 12, 2024

Page 3 of 6 

1. Contract with Wheeler Excavation, LLC for Wenatchee Heights Phase II Road

Improvement Project, County Road Project 746 (CRP 746)

20240312A5-2 

2. Call for Bids – Bridge Deck and Joint Rehabilitation Bundle, County Road Project 
747 (CRP 747)           20240312A5-3

3. County Road Administration Board Annual Certification

20240312A5-4 

4. Certification of Diversion and Road Fund Expenditures for Traffic Law Enforcement

20240312A5-5 

10:16:07 A.M.  Community Development Director Deanna Walter 

Discussion 

1. Third Amendment to Perteet Contract Flood Plain Management Services

10:17:40 A.M. Action  

Upon motion and second by Commissioner Gering and Smith, the Commission unanimously 

approves the action items as follows: 

1. Third Amendment to Perteet Contract Flood Plain Management Services.

20240312A5-6 

Continued Departmental Discussion 

1. STR Housing Stock Numbers (Kirsten Ryles Asst. Director)

10:48:49 A.M. Recess 

11:00:25 A.M. Back in Session 

11:00:41 A.M. Natural Resources Director Mike Kaputa 

11:01:13 A.M. Executive session:  Real Estate 

Upon motion and second by Commissioners Gering and Smith, the Commission unanimously 

approves to move into a 15-minute Executive Session Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(b) to 

consider the selection site or acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase. 

11:17:27 A.M. Moved Back to Regular Session 

11:18:02 A.M. Continued Departmental Discussion 

1. Notice of award and execute agreement with Wenatchee Quality Welding for

Leavenworth National Fish Hatchery Structure 5 picket fabrication



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AGENDA   
MARCH 11, 2024 & MARCH 12, 2024 

 
 

 

 Page 4 of 6 

2. Amendment to agreement with WA Recreation and Conservation Office for Peshastin 

Creek rivermile (RM) 3.2 design project 

3. Work Order #3 with Cascade Orchard Irrigation Company 

4. Change Order with Ramos Reforestation for Nason Creek Kahler Reach habitat 

enhancement planting project 

5. Amendment 1 to agreement with Natural Systems Design for Icicle Strategy 

geomorphology technical support 

6. Agreement with WA Recreation and Conservation Office Fish Barrier Removal 

Board for Eagle Creek (Clark) fish barrier design and replacement 

7. Amended and restated water right purchase and sale agreement with Miller Orchard, 

LLC 

8. Other 

 

11:27:15 A.M. Action  

Upon motion and second by Commissioner Gering and Smith, the Commission unanimously 

approves the action items as follows: 

1. Notice of award and execute agreement with Wenatchee Quality Welding for 

Leavenworth National Fish Hatchery Structure 5 picket fabrication 

20240312A5-7 

2. Amendment to agreement with WA Recreation and Conservation Office for Peshastin 

Creek rivermile (RM) 3.2 design project    20240312A5-8 

3. Work Order #3 with Cascade Orchard Irrigation Company  20240312A5-9 

4. Change Order with Ramos Reforestation for Nason Creek Kahler Reach habitat 

enhancement planting project     20240312A5-10 

5. Amendment 1 to agreement with Natural Systems Design for Icicle Strategy 

geomorphology technical support     20240312A5-11 

6. Agreement with WA Recreation and Conservation Office Fish Barrier Removal 

Board for Eagle Creek (Clark) fish barrier design and replacement  

20240312A5-12 

7. Amended and restated water right purchase and sale agreement with Miller Orchard, 

LLC         20240312A5-13 

 

11:33:45 A.M. Economic Services Director Ron Cridlebaugh  

Discussion 

1. Departmental Update 

 

11:39:35 A.M. Recess  



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AGENDA   
MARCH 11, 2024 & MARCH 12, 2024 

 
 

 

 Page 5 of 6 

 

1:00:30 P.M. Back in Session  

 

1:00:55 P.M.  Jail Director Chris Sharp 

Discussion 

1. Departmental Update 

 

1:25:50 P.M. Recess 

 

1:31:38 P.M. Back in Session  

 

1:32:00 P.M. County Administrator Cathy Mulhall  

Discussion 

1. HR Update 

2. Administrative Update 

 

1:37:38 P.M. Action 

Upon motion and second by Commissioner Gering and Smith, the Commission unanimously 

approves the action items as follows: 

1. Contract for the Provision of Legal Services with John Beuhler Law Firm 

20240312A5-14 

2. Contract for the Provision of Legal Services with Reid Legal Office PLLC 

20240312A5-15 

3. Contract for the Provision of Legal Services with Kottkamp, Yedinak and Esworthy 

20240312A5-16 

4. Memorandum for 90-day Extension of Reclassification Moratorium 

20240312A5-17 

 

1:38:21 P.M. Executive Session Re: Performance of a Public Employee   

Upon motion and second by Commissioners Gering and Smith, the Commission 

unanimously approves to move into a 10-minute Executive Session Pursuant to RCW 

42.30.110(g), performance of a public employee. 

 

Extend Executive Session by 10 minutes– Public Notified  

 

1:59:09 P.M. Moved Back to Regular Session  

 

2:10:07 A.M. Adjourn  

Board adjourns until Monday, March 18, 2024. 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AGENDA   
MARCH 11, 2024 & MARCH 12, 2024 

 
 

 

 Page 6 of 6 

 

Weekly Voucher Approval for Payment                 20240312B4-1 

 

Current Expense  $925,667.97 

Other Funds  $573,808.27 

  Total All Funds $1,499,476.24 

 

BOARD OF CHELAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

      KEVIN OVERBAY, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

      _______________________________ 

 

                 ANABEL TORRES, Clerk of the Board 

 



PCN 3/18/24



PCN 3/18/24



PCN 3/18/24



PCN 3/18/24



PCN 3/18/24



PCN 3/18/24



PCN 3/18/24



PCN 3/18/24



PCN 3/18/24



PCN 3/18/24



PCN 3/18/24



PCN 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda Mar 18, 2024.docx 

 ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA 
March 18, 2024 

DISCUSSION ITEM: 
1. District Court Judges RE: Lead Clerk Position
2. Administrative Update

ACTION ITEM: 
1. Grant Services Agreement – 2024 Lodging Tax Funded Activities with Chelan Boys

Basketball Boosters
2. Grant Services Agreement – 2024 Lodging Tax Funded Activities with Two Rivers

Medieval Faire
3. Grant Services Agreement – 2024 Lodging Tax Funded Activities with Wenatchee

Valley Velo Club
4. WaTech Service Level Agreement – Statewide Imagery Consortium

Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



RE
GRANT SERVICES AGREEMENT

2024 LODGING TAX FUNDED ACTIVITIES

THIS AGREEIIIENT, made and entered into by and between Chelan County, a municipal corporation of
the State of Washington, hereinafter referred to as "County," and "wenatchee Valley Velo
Club " hereinafter referred to as "Contractor."

WHEREA9 the County, after the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee duly advertised, reviewed and
recommended lodging tax funded activities, based on the information provided in the application attached
hereto as the scope of work; and

WtIEREAS, the Contractor represents that the tourism promotion activities in said application meet all the
requirements set forth in RCW 67.28.1816i. And further agree to any reporting requirements set out in
this RCW or otherwise required by the County.

ilOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual benefits set out herein, it is agreed as follows:

1. S€rvices. The Contractor shall perform the services identifted in the attacfied Scope of Work (LTAC

Application) as approved by the County's Lodging Tax Advisory Committee, and provide all staffing,
materials and supplies in order to carry out such work.

2. Fundinc AmounL The County shall grant to the Contractor under this Agreement a srrm not to
exceed $17,500.00 for satisfactorily carrying out the Scope of Work described in the LTAC Application.
Payments made pursuant to this paragraph shall be the total compensation by the County for the
services to be performed by Contractor. An accounting for all funds spent is required at year-end

along with a brief synopsis of the evenvactivity. Any unused funds must be returned to the County.
funds may not be reallocated to other activities.

3. Indemnificauon. Contractor shall defend, indemniry and hold the County. its officers, officials,
employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including
attomey fees, arising out of or resulting from the ac8. errors or omissions of the Contractor in the
performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the
County.

4. Term. The term of this Agreement and the performance of the Contractor shall commence upon
signing by both parties and shall terminate on December 31, 2024.

5. Reportinq. Contractor shall complete the'State Required Reporting Information" within 14 days
following the evenvactivity. This form must be returned to CM.LTAc@co.chelan.wa.us

6. Ilo Discrimination. Contractor shall, in employment made possible or resulting from this Agreemenl
ensure that there shall be no unlawful discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment
in violation of RCW 49.60.180, as cunently written or hereafter amended, or other applicable law
prohibiung discrimination, unless based upon a bona fide occupational qualification as provided in RCW

49.60.180 or as otherwise permitted by other applicable law. Further, no person shall be denied or
subjected to discrimination in receipt of the benefit of any seMces or activities made possible by or
resulting from this Agreement in violation of RCW 40.60.215 or other applicable law prohibiting

discrimination.

Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



7. DifDt|tgBEoEtigtr Any dispute @nceming questions of Fact in connection with the work not
disposed of by agreement between Contractor and the County $all be refened for determination to
the County Commissioners, whose decision in the matter shall be final and binding on the parties of
this agreement, provided, however, that if an action is brought dallenging the Commissioners'
decision, that decision shall be $bject to de novo judicial review. In the event of litigation over the
terms of this agreement, eadr party shall bear its o\rrn attomefs fe€s aM costs incurred therein,

EXECUTED this _ day of 2024.

COUT{TY

By:

Kevin Overbay, Commission Chair

COI{TRACTOR

By:

Print Na
'-J 

".r^, 
iou,srtgol'

Authorized Representative

Attadrments:
Artide 1. Scope of Work - LTAC Application
Article 5. Repofting - State Required Reporting Form

Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



Administrative Agenda 3/18/24



AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, PAYMENT OF AND 

REIMBURSEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION EXPENSES 

This Agreement for Construction Management, Payment of and Reimbursement 
for Construction Expenses ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between Chelan 
County ("Chelan County"), Cascade Orchards Irrigation Company ("COIC") and 
\Vashington Water Trust ("WWT") (each a "Party" and together, the "Parties") as of the 
Effective Date defined below. 

RECITALS 

A. core is the owner oflcicle Creek Adjudicated Certificate No. I (sometimes
identified by S4-*3500 I JWRIS) ("Water Right") holding a priority date of January I, 1905 
and as confirmed by the Chelan County Superior Court General Adjudication of Icicle 
Creek on October 28, 1929. The Water Right authorizes COIC to divert from Icicle Creek 
for the purpose of irrigation. 

B. On April 20, 1940, Washington State Supervisor of Hydraulics (the
predecessor agency now known as the State of Washington State Department of Ecology 
("Ecology") granted core a permit to deliver water to the United States through a 1939 
Easement and Maintenance Agreement, which is attached as Exhibit C to the Water Right 
("Temporary Permit"). The Temporary Permit authorized a temporary change to the place 
of use of"surplus waters", as defined in the permit, to the United States at its Leavenworth 
National Fish Hatchery ("LNFI-1") for "periods when such water is not required by the 
Cascade Orchards ln-igation Co.". The temporary change as provided in Exhibit C to the 
Water Permit is "for an indefinite time". The temporary change added fish hatchery and 
rearing pond operation as permitted purposes of use for the surplus water. 

C. On August 25, 2023, the State of Washington Department of Ecology
("Ecology") issued a Report of Examination ("Report of Examination"), authorizing a 
change to COlC's Water Right under Change Authorization CS4-3500 I J@l . The Report 
of Examination added an authorized instream flow (non-consumptive) additional purpose 
of use for the Water Right, quantified at I 1.9 cubic feet per second ( cfs) and 4012.6 acre
feet per year (afy), and a change to the point of diversion from Icicle Creek River Mile 
("RN!") 4.5 to Icicle Creek RM 1.9 for up to 8.0 cfs and 1,319 af y for continued beneficial 
use by COIC for the irrigation ofup to 420 acres. 

D. Icicle Creek is identified as critical habitat contributing to the recovery of
steelhead, Oncorhynchus mykiss, cun-ently listed as threatened, in the Upper Columbia 
River Evolutionary Significant Unit (UCR-ESU). The purpose of this Agreement is to 
facilitate funding for and construction of and implementation of a project that will address 
restoration needs for this and other fish populations through COIC's discontinuance of use 
of its existing diversion at RN! 4.5 and gravity-fed in-igation system and replacing it with 
a new diversion at RN! 1.9, pump station and a pressurized in-igation system downstream, 
restoring 11.9 cubic feet/second ( cfs) of permanent flows in Primary Reach A to Icicle 

Page I of24 
AGREEME\'T FOR CONSTRUCTIO� .\1A''1AGE:v!E:--T 

PA YMEYI' OF A.'m RE!MBLTRSE:VIE'.'."T FOR COi\STRCCTIO:-.r EXPE:,.JSES 

Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



Natural Resources Agenda 3/18/24



BOCC Agenda 
March 18, 2024 
 
11:30 P.M.  Economic Services Director  

Ron Cridlebaugh 

Discussion 
1. Authorization to submit Homeless Housing Planning Grant 
2. Contract Amendment with Women’s Resource Center 
3. Executive Session 
4. Departmental update 

 
Action 

1. Authorization to submit Homeless Housing Planning Grant 
2. Contract Amendment with Women’s Resource Center 

 
 

Economic Services Agenda 3/18/24



 

CHELAN COUNTY 
ECONOMIC SERVICES  

400 DOUGLAS STREET, SUITE #201 WENATCHEE, WA 98801 
T: 509.667.6883 | F: 509.667.6599 

 
 

 
MEMO 
 
 

TO:  Board of Commissioners 

FROM: Amber Hallberg, Housing Program Coordinator 

DATE:  March 13, 2024 

RE:  Women’s Resource Center Budget Amendment   

 
 
 
Background: 

In June 2023, Women’s Resource Center (WRC) was awarded $160,000 for the biennium for their 
Rapid Re-Housing Contract. The contract states in their scope of work that they will “use more 
coordinated outreach to those who qualify for low-income housing and work to assist individuals 
experiencing homelessness find permanent housing.” WRC applied for Diversion Funding from 
Washington State Commerce in November 2023 to expand on this program and start to use a 
botom-up approach to the Coordinated Entry list. WRC wanted to do inten�onal outreach to see if 
people at the botom of the list, who are likely to not receive services, could have their housing crisis 
solved with Diversion. WRC was not awarded the funding by Commerce.  

Proposed Budget Amendment and Purpose: 

WRC has managed to house nearly all of their clients that have a Sec�on 8 or Rapid Re-housing 
voucher, and are able to expand on the work that they are doing. A�er they were declined the State 
funding, they brought their proposal to Staff at Chelan County. 

WRC iden�fied that clients who are toward the botom of the Coordinated Entry list will not be 
referred for services for an unforeseen amount of �me if ever. The expansion of this program would 
allow for clients at the botom of the list to receive quicker solu�ons or connect them to other 
necessary services in the interim 

Economic Services Agenda 3/18/24



 

CHELAN COUNTY 
ECONOMIC SERVICES  

400 DOUGLAS STREET, SUITE #201 WENATCHEE, WA 98801 
T: 509.667.6883 | F: 509.667.6599 

 
 

Staff is reques�ng WRC funding be amended to hire two full-�me employees to make phone calls to 
clients at the botom of the Coordinated Entry list and provide case management services to help 
clients get connected to services and benefits while they wait for a more permanent housing 
solu�on, or help them to iden�fy a permanent solu�on to be removed from the list..  

Budget Amendment: 

WRC has requested $156,000 of Program Opera�ons, $11,000 of Administra�on, and $30,000 of 
Direct Client Assistance Flexible Funding for a total of $197,000. This would be funded in part by 
Local Document Recording Fees and the Emergency Housing Fund.   

 

 

Economic Services Agenda 3/18/24



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHELAN COUNTY 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

400 DOUGLAS STREET, SUITE #201 
WENATCHEE, WA 98801 

PHONE (509) 667-6215   FAX (509) 667-6599 
 

March, 12th, 2024  

RE: Coordina�ng Low-Income Housing Planning Grant 
 
To Department of Commerce:  
 
I, Kevin Overbay, Chair of the Board of Chelan County Commissioner, authorize Chelan County to 
propose the attached scope of work and budget request for grant funding to coordinate local low-
income housing planning efforts. We recognize this grant requires coordination between counties and 
cities and we have engaged and submit this application with the City of Wenatchee. We have also 
engaged and notified our emergency housing planning lead, Alan Walker, Executive Director, Chelan 
Douglas Community Action Council, of our intention to work with them on these grant activities. 
 
We propose to use the grant funds to create and implement our 5-year Homeless Housing Strategic Plan 
and Comprehensive plan by hiring a strategic consultant. We commit to completing this work by June 
15, 2025 and have the available resources and staff to support his work if we are awarded the grant 
funds. 
 
Our proposed timeline for this work is included in the attached scope of work. We also understand that 
the GMA requires us to adopt policies and regulations to plan for and accommodate all housing needs. 
These policies and regulations, informed by this grant work, will be considered and adopted as part of 
our scheduled periodic review update to our comprehensive plan deadline.  
Board of Chelan County Commissioners, 

 
BOARD OF CHELAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       KEVIN OVERBAY, CHAIRMAN 

ATTEST 

________________________________                ____________________________________ 

Anabel Torres       TIFFANY GERING, COMMISSIONER 

Clerk of the Board                                                  

____________________________________ 

                                 SHON SMITH, COMMISSIONER 

Economic Services Agenda 3/18/24



AMENDMENT #1 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN CHELAN COUNTY 

AND 
THE WOMEN'S RESOURCE CENTER OF NCW 

FOR 
UTILIZATION OF CONSOLIDATED HOMELESS GRANT FUNDS AND LOCAL DOCUMENT RECORDING FEES 

 
THIS AGREEMENT entered into this ____ day of _____________, 2024 by and between Chelan County (herein called 
the “County”) and the Women's Resource Center of NCW (herein called the “Sub Grantee”).  

WHEREAS, the County receives funds from the Washington State Department of Commerce’s Consolidated Homeless 
Grant (CHG) to address the needs of people who are homeless or at-risk of homelessness including the operation of 
emergency shelters, transitional housing units, and permanent supportive housing programs; rental assistance; 
homeless outreach; data collection and reporting; and  

WHEREAS, the County receives funds collected by the Chelan and Douglas County Auditors pursuant to 
RCW 36.22.179 to accomplish purposes set forth in the Chelan-Douglas Homeless Housing Strategic Plan;  
 
WHEREAS, the County wishes to engage the Sub Grantee to assist the County in utilizing such funds; 

 

II. AMENDMENT TO BUDGET  

Section II, Subsection A, of the agreement dated July 1st, 2023 is hereby amended as follows:  

This contract has a start date for delivery of services to being on April 1st, 2024. In order to 
provide adequate level of services for the need in the community for the diversion, coordinated 
outreach efforts, and permanent housing search, this amendment increases the original 
contract to include $124,800 in Program Operations and $8,801 funded by the Emergency 
Housing Fund and $2,199 Administration, $31,200 Program Operations, and $30,000 of Direct 
Assistance -Flexible Funding by Local Document Recording Fees.  
 

The Sub Grantee may charge eligible expenses in accordance with the following Budget 

 

Consolidated Homeless Grant- CHG Standard Budget Amount 

Rent $50,000 

SUBTOTAL $50,000 

Consolidated Homeless Grant - Emergency Housing Fund  Budget Amount  

Program Operations  $124,800 

Administration  $8,801 

SUBTOTAL $133,596 

Consolidated Homeless Grant- Eviction Prevention  Budget Amount 

Administration $5,000 

Program Operations $55,000 

Rent $50,000 

SUBTOTAL  $160,000 

Economic Services Agenda 3/18/24



July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025 Homeless Grant Agreement: Women’s Resource Center- Rapid Rehousing Project 

 - 2 - 

Local Document Recording Fees Budget Amount 

Administration $2,199 

Program Operations $31,200 

Direct Assistance $30,000 

SUBTOTAL $63,399 

TOTAL FUNDING ALLOCATION  $357, 000 

 

III. INVOICING & PAYMENT  

A. It is expressly agreed and understood that the total amount to be paid by the County under this 
Agreement shall not exceed $357,000. 

B. Reimbursement requests for the payment of eligible expenses shall be made against the line item 
budgets specified in Section III herein and in accordance with performance.   

C. No payments in advance of or in anticipation of goods or services to be provided under this Grant shall 
be made by the County.   

IV. ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the County and the Sub Grantee for the use of 
funds received under this Agreement and it supersedes all prior or contemporaneous communications and 
proposals, whether electronic, oral, or written between the County and the Sub Grantee with respect to this 
Agreement.  

 
Date 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this contract as of the date first written above.  
 
[County]                [Sub Grantee] 
 
 
By__________________________________________                           By___________________________________ 
    KEVIN OVERBAY, CHAIRMAN 
    BOARD OF CHELAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS     
 

            Name ________________________________                              
        
 
 
Attest_______________________________________                          Title __________________________________ 
             ANABEL TORRES, CLERK OF THE BOARD  
 
                                  Fed. I. D. #_____________________________ 

Economic Services Agenda 3/18/24



CHELAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS ISSUES 

 
March 19, 2024  

 
9:30 A.M. PUBLIC WORKS AGENDA 
  Public Works Director/County Engineer Eric Pierson 
 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

 
1. Contract for Herbicide Application on County Roads with Woodland Resource Services, 

Inc.  
2. Contract with SCI Industrial Services, LLC for Dryden Transfer Station Push Pit Floor 

Repair, Solid Waste Project No. 834 (SW 834) 
3. Open Item 
 
ACTION ITEMS: 
 
1. Approve Contract for Herbicide Application on County Roads with Woodland Resource 

Services, Inc. 
2. Approve Contract with SCI Industrial Services, LLC for Dryden Transfer Station Push 

Pit Floor Repair, Solid Waste Project No. 834 (SW 834) 
 

10:00 A.M. Flood Control Zone District  
  District Administrator Eric Pierson  
 
 
 
  

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 1 of 16 

CONTRACT FOR MAINTENANCE  
SPRAYING ON COUNTY ROADSIDES 

THIS CONTRACT is entered into between Chelan County, Washington, whose address is 316 
Washington Street, Suite 402, Wenatchee, Washington, 98801 and Woodland Resource Services 
Inc., whose address is 1063 Emerson Road, Ellensburg, WA 98926. The parties are collectively 
referred to herein as “parties”, and may be referred to separately as a “party”.  

In consideration of the terms and conditions contained herein, and those additional documents 
incorporated and made part of this Contract, the Parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1: GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1.1 Definitions: 

“Board of Commissioners” means the Board of County Commissioners for Chelan County, 
Washington. 

“Contract” means the binding agreement for services for herbicide application in County rights of 
way, as memorialized and agreed to in this Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County 
Roadsides, the County’s Request for Proposals, the Contractor’s Proposal, addendums, schedules, 
exhibits, incorporated documents and terms, or any combination thereof.  

“Contractor” means the person, firm or company awarded the Contract. 

“County” means Chelan County, Washington. 

“County Engineer” or “Engineer” means the Chelan County Engineer and includes his or her 
designee.  

“Material” means herbicide and adjuvants used by the Contractor for right of way maintenance 
pursuant to this Contract. 

“Program(s)” means the following pesticide application programs:  

1. Residual Program along hard-surfaced County roads, commonly required to be 
performed annually, between February 15th to April 15th and/or October 15th to 
November 15th; and 

 

2. Noxious Weed Control Program for spot treatments that may be necessary 
throughout the county rights of way to control specific noxious weeds and are 
commonly required to be performed annually, during mid-spring and summer; and 

 
3. Foliar Roadside Treatment Program along hard surfaced County Roads, commonly 

required to be performed annually, between June 15th and August 15th. 

   

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 2 of 16 

“Right(s) of Way” is used herein to mean land owned in fee by Chelan County or an easement 
granted to the Public of Chelan County.  It may include any surface of a street or road, drainage 
ditch or fill or cut slope within this area. 

“Vegetation Control Technician” means a delegee of the County Engineer, authorized as the 
primary County contact for coordination and administration of this Contract as may be identified 
herein, or otherwise delegated by the County Engineer. 

“Work” means the tasks and activities necessary for the performance of the Contractor to perform, 
as provided by the Contract. 

1.2 Intent. 

This Contract contains all terms and conditions agreed upon by the Parties. To be valid and binding 
on the parties, any change or addition to this Contract shall be made by written amendment and 
executed by both Parties. The parties do not intend for any unspecified 3rd party to be a beneficiary 
of this Contract. 

1.3 Interpretation of the Contract; Order of Precedence. 

The Contract documents are intended to be complimentary.  What is required in one part of the 
Contract shall be binding as if required by all.  Resolutions of conflict or inconsistency of terms 
within the documents shall be guided by the following order of precedence (with 1 having 
precedence over 2, 3, etc). 

1. Federal, Washington State, tribal, or Chelan County laws, codes, and regulations 
governing or pertaining to the Work; 

2. Change Orders; 

3. This signed Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides – 2024 Contract, as 
executed by the parties following proposal evaluation and award; 

4. Chelan County’s Request for Proposals; and 

5. The Contractor’s Proposal. 

ARTICLE 2: SCOPE OF WORK 

The Contractor is responsible for the timely execution, preparation, management, supervision, 
inspection, and reporting, as detailed in this Contract, and as directed by the Chelan County 
Department of Public Works, for the purpose of providing Chelan County with herbicide 
application services for weed control on all or parts of County right-of-way along approximately 
1,100 shoulder miles of Chelan County hard-surfaced roads. The tasks and activities necessary 
for the Contractor to perform the scope of work, and meet the terms and conditions is 
collectively referred to herein as “Work”. The Work, or portions thereof, shall be performed 
annually as needed, based on the determination and direction of the Chelan County Engineer. 

 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 3 of 16 

 

 

ARTICLE 3: CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 

3.1 County Engineer. 

The Chelan County Engineer is the Administrator of this Contract. The Engineer designates the 
Vegetation Control Technician to act as the Engineer’s delegee and primary contact for purposes 
of administrating this Contract. All correspondence, questions, and/or documentation, except for 
invoices for payment, shall be addressed as follows: 

 Chelan County Public Works 
 Attn: Tony Daggett - Vegetation Control Technician 
 316 Washington Street, Suite 402 
 Wenatchee, WA 98801 

 Phone: (509) 667-6418 
 Fax: (509) 667-6250 

3.2 Contractor’s Representative. 

If different than the contact information provided in the Proposal, the Contractor shall designate a 
representative(s) for purposes of communication and administration of the Contract. If the 
representative, or the contact information changes, the Contractor shall update the County on such 
changes at the Contractor’s earliest convenience. The County shall not be responsible for any 
attempted communications with the Contractor via incorrect or outdated contact information. 

3.3 Requests for Information. 

For mutual convenience and efficiency, unless revoked by written instrument, signed by both 
parties, the designated representatives agree that requests for information and responses may be 
by e-mail between the representatives, or by a telephone call which is promptly memorialized in 
writing by the responding party and sent to the inquiring party. 

3.4 Time of the Essence. 

All time requirements set forth in the Contract are of the essence. 

3.5 Monitoring the Work. 

The County retains all rights to monitor and observe activities within the County right of ways, 
including activities performed by the Contractor under this Contract.  

3.6 Correction of Work. 

If the Contractor’s equipment or workmanship does not meet the Contract requirements, the 
County may have the right to reject any nonconforming portion of the Work by giving the 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 4 of 16 

Contractor written notice of the defect or nonconformity. The County may require the Contractor 
to correct the defect or nonconforming part of the Work within a reasonable time at no cost to the 
County. 

3.7 Assignment or Subcontractors. 

The Contract is between Chelan County and the Contractor.  The Contractor shall not assign or 
subcontract any portion of the Work, except as may be authorized by prior written approval of 
the Board of County Commissioners. 

ARTICLE 4: CONTRACTOR 

4.1 Contractor Representations. 

The Contractor represents and warrants to the County, that the Contractor has at the time of 
Contract execution, carefully reviewed the Contract and any inconsistency, omission, or conflict 
arising from that review has been resolved by the parties. 

Having made that review, the Contractor further represents and warrants to the County, the 
following: 

A. The Contractor meets all licensing or certification requirements necessary to 
perform its obligations under this Contract, and has met any other timeframes or deadlines 
for proof of licensing or certification that may have arisen during the RFP process.  

B. The Contractor has made any site visits, inspections, or inquiries into the 
geographic, meteorological, elevation, environmental conditions and generalized right of 
way conditions, as the Contractor deems necessary to commit to the obligations and 
responsibilities of this Contract.  

C. The Contractor represents and warrants that they can meet the qualifications to 
perform the Work, pursuant to any conditions, schedules, limits, or other terms as specified 
by this Contract. 

4.2 General Standards and Duties. 

A. The Contractor shall be required to meet the standards and expectations for the 
Work, and performance thereof, as set out in this Contract, law and regulation, and 
industry best practices. This duty includes, but is not limited to the timely performance 
and completion of Work while exercising due care and diligence. The Contractor shall at 
all times prioritize and protect the public safety, public and private property, and the 
environment and comply with all federal, Washington State, tribal, and Chelan County 
laws, codes, rules and regulations applicable to the Work under the Contract and to the 
materials used for the Work.  The provisions of the Washington Pesticide Application 
Act, R.C.W. 17.21, as amended, shall apply in all respects: 

B. In the event that the Contractor is unable to make treatments as directed due to 
conditions beyond its control, the Contractor shall promptly notify the County in writing 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 5 of 16 

of the conditions or occurrences which affect, interfere with, or prevent proper execution 
or results for the Work. 

4.3 Contractor’s Supervision and Employees. 

The Contractor shall provide qualified, duly licensed and/or certified, and competent 
personnel to satisfy the terms and conditions of this Contract. Management and supervision 
for the performance of Work is the sole responsibility of the Contractor. 

4.4 Independent Contractor. 

A. The Contractor is an independent contractor with respect to performance of this 
Contract.  Nothing in this Contract shall be considered to create an employer—employee 
relationship between the parties. 

B. Employees of, or other persons operating on behalf of the Contractor to perform 
any Work for this Contract, shall at all times be considered employees of the Contractor 
only, and not of the County. Any and all claims that may arise under any workmen’s 
compensation act, and any and all claims made by a third party as a consequence of an act 
or omission on the part of the Contractor, its employees or other persons while so engaged 
in the Work shall be the sole obligation and responsibility of the Contractor. 

C. Neither the Contractor nor any employee of the Contractor shall be entitled to any 
benefits afforded the County’s employees by virtue of the services provided under this 
Contract. 

D. The County shall not be responsible for withholding or otherwise deducting federal 
income tax or social security or for contributing to the state industrial insurance program 
or otherwise assuming the duties of an employer with respect to the Contractor, or any 
employees of the Contractor. 

4.5 Materials Furnished by County; When Water Is Furnished by Contractor. 

A. The County purchases all necessary chemical materials, including herbicides and 
adjuvants, directly from suppliers, and shall furnish the necessary materials to the 
Contractor, to be used for the sole purpose of completing the Work. 

B. County materials shall be stored at County facilities (“storage site”). Storage sites 
will be reasonably accessible to the Contractor for collecting materials, returning 
materials, cleaning the spray equipment, as needed under the terms of this Contract. 
Access to storage sites may be restricted to specified days and times, as determined 
appropriate by the County Engineer for health, safety and convenience, and any 
limitation or restriction shall be designated in writing to the Contractor prior to taking 
effect. 

C. The County shall provide the Contractor with water at the below listed locations, 
to the extent that the water is available for use. 

1. Chelan Shop, 23290 Hwy 97A, Chelan, Washington; 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 6 of 16 

2. Leavenworth Shop, 10210 County Shop Road, Leavenworth, Washington; and  

3. Sunnyslope Shop, 210 Easy Street, Wenatchee, Washington. 

D.  The County shall not be responsible for securing alternate water sources, in the 
event that water is not available for use at the locations identified in this section. 

E. In no circumstance, does the County authorize the Contractor to draft water out of 
rivers, streams or reservoirs.  Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State and County 
laws and regulations concerning loading water from any source and shall always use a 
backflow preventer when loading water. 

4.6 Working Times and Conditions. 

The Contractor shall only perform work in the County right-of-way during such times and under 
such conditions as are allowed under Chapter 17.21 RCW, and as may be further limited by the 
County Engineer.   

4.7 Logs, Reports, and Other Records To Be Submitted to the County. 

In addition to the recordkeeping requirements of RCW 17.21.100, for and during the course of 
each active application period the Contractor shall maintain application logs and submit to Public 
Works the following logs, reports, projections, and records: 

A. The Contractor must complete signed daily application logs on County-approved 
forms. These application logs shall be submitted by the Contractor to the County weekly for 
all Work performed in the preceding week. 

B. Public Works will provide maps of Chelan County, or portions thereof, upon which 
the Contractor shall highlight the areas of county right-of-way treated with herbicide and 
indicate the date of application for each area.  

4.8 Maintenance, Inspection and Retention of Records. 

A. The Contractor shall keep up-to-date and available for inspection by the County the 
application logs, copies of licenses, registrations, certifications, and insurance documents 
and other records required under this Contract and all items related to, or bearing upon, 
these records.  A County audit will be limited to those records reasonably deemed by the 
Contractor to be non-proprietary. 

B. The records shall be retained for a period not less than seven years from the date of 
the application of the pesticide to which such records refer.  

C. If any litigation, claim or audit commences before the expiration of the seven-year 
retention period, the records shall be retained by the Contractor until all litigation, claims or 
audit findings involving the records have been resolved.   

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 7 of 16 

D. If the Contractor is dissolved, assigns, or otherwise divests itself of its legal capacity 
under this Contract, then it shall immediately notify the County and preserve such records, 
at the Contractor’s expense.  

4.9 Permits, Laws, and Regulations. 

A. The Contractor shall be responsible to obtain and maintain all permits, licenses and 
certifications as are required for the Work. 

B. The Contractor shall perform all work in full compliance with local, federal, tribal, 
and Washington State laws, codes, resolutions, and regulations and with license and permit 
conditions pertaining to the Work.  The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and the hold 
County harmless from any assessment of fines, penalties or damages arising from the same 
by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall pay and provide proof of payment of any such 
assessments of fines, penalties, or damages.  The Contractor shall cooperate with all 
government entities regarding inspection of the Work and compliance with such 
requirements. 

C. The Contractor is required to pay all applicable taxes.  No adjustment will be made 
in the amount to be paid by the County under the Contract because of any change in law or 
regulation covering any applicable taxes, except sales tax, or because of any 
misunderstanding by the Contractor as to its liability for or the amount of taxes. 

4.10 Deviation from Contract. 

The County shall have the right to treat any alteration, variation, deviation, or omission from the 
requirements of this Contract as a contract breach if prior written consent is not obtained from the 
County. Such a breach may be justification for the County to withhold payment, stop work, or 
summarily terminate the Contract. 

4.11 Equipment. 

A. The Contractor’s equipment must have the capacity to simultaneously carry 
sensitive and non-sensitive residual herbicide. 

B. Equipment used to perform the Work must be inspected and approved by the 
Engineer prior to being placed into service by the Contractor. 

C. The Contractor shall be responsible for proper care, protection, and storage of its 
equipment and shall maintain its equipment in proper working order.  

D. The Contractor shall triple rinse all containers used for the Work after each use and 
prior to storage, except refillable totes 

E. Equipment may only be stored at the County’s designated material storage site 
(“storage site”) with prior written approval from the Engineer, and if approved is stored at 
the Contractor’s own risk.  The County shall not be responsible or liable for any loss or 
damage to Contractor’s equipment if stored. 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 8 of 16 

4.12 Operations. 

A. For each Program, the Engineer shall provide the Contractor with the designated 
areas of right-of-way to be treated by herbicide application. The Contractor shall confine 
all herbicide application to the designated areas of right-of-way for each Program. The 
Contractor shall be responsible for updating the designated areas, as necessary in response 
to a Change Order, posted “Owner Will Maintain” signage, or other specifically 
identifiable condition that prevents the Contractor from operating in compliance with law, 
industry standards or practices, or provisions of the Contract.  

B. Each herbicide application must be applied to the County right-of-way in one pass. 

4.13 Material Inventory, Handling, and Monitoring. 

A. The Contractor shall utilize only the County’s designated facility(s) for storage, 
dispatching, and deliveries of materials.   

B. The Contractor shall return all unmixed chemical materials to a storage facility(s) 
provided by and designated by the County. The Contractor shall be responsible to monitor 
and inventory the types and quantities of County materials and provide the County 
sufficient advance notice of low materials to allow for ordering and delivery of additional 
materials in time to avoid delays to the Work.  

4.14 Spills. 

The Contractor shall be responsible for any spills, repairs, or damage of any type resulting from 
Contractor’s use of the storage site. The Contractor will clean up and dispose of any chemical 
spills in compliance with all applicable laws and to the satisfaction of appropriate regulatory 
authority(s), regardless of the location of a spill.  

4.15 Contractor’s Responsibility for Protection of Persons and Property. 

A. The Contractor shall be responsible for the safety of all persons and property during 
the performance of the Work.  

B. The Contractor shall perform the Work in a manner which meets statutory and 
common law requirements, or other specific contractual requirements for the provision of 
a safe place to work and which adequately protects all persons and property in or near the 
areas in which the Contractor performs the Work.  This requirement shall apply 
continuously and is not limited to working hours. 

C. The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all 
safety precautions and programs, including safety training, in connection with the Work.  
The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, codes, regulations, rules, resolutions, 
and lawful orders of any public authority bearing on the safety of persons, property or their 
protection from damage, injury or loss. 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 9 of 16 

D. The Contractor shall perform the Work in compliance with the Manual on Uniform 
Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) requirements and shall supply all required signing, 
barricades, flaggers, or other personnel or means needed for such compliance.  

E. The Contractor shall take all reasonable precautions for the safety of its employees 
performing the Work and all other persons who may be affected by such Work.   

F. The Contractor shall comply with applicable requirements of the Federal 
Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (OSHA) and the Washington Industrial Safety 
Act of 1973 (WISHA), including revisions, amendments and regulations under either act.  
Any violation of this Section or other safety requirements applicable to the Work may be 
considered a breach of contract, and grounds for contract termination. 

G. The Contractor shall be solely and completely responsible for damages arising from 
the Work on property adjacent to the Contractor’s herbicide application. 

H. The Contractor shall repair or replace with no cost to the County any damage or 
loss that may occur, except damages or loss caused by acts or omissions of the County. 

I. The Contractor shall, in performing the Work, protect from damage structures, real 
property, personal property and utility facilities.  

J. The Contractor shall, in performing the Work, protect from damage all landscaping, 
trees, and vegetation, whether public or private, that is not required to be treated with 
herbicide under the Work. 

K. The Contractor shall repair, at no cost to the County, damage to real property, 
personal property, utilities, landscaping, trees, or vegetation resulting from the failure to 
comply with requirements of this Contract. 

4.16 Environmental Requirements. 

A. The Contractor shall perform the Work in compliance with all applicable 
environmental laws and shall be liable for all penalties, damages, and violations under any 
federal or Washington State law or regulation, rule, or order.  

B. The Contractor specifically represents that Contractor has knowledge of and 
understands the provisions and requirements of Chapter 90.48 RCW, including regulations 
pursuant thereto. 

ARTICLE 5: CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT 

5.1 Contractor’s Request for Change Order. 

A. Field directives, responses to requests for information, or other directive, 
instruction or interpretation are not considered a Change Order. 

B. The Contractor shall not be entitled to a Change Order for conditions or events (1) 
reasonably foreseeable at the time of entry into the Contract or (2) caused by the Contractor. 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 10 of 16 

C. Request for Change Order. 

1. No later than seven days after the event, directive, instruction, comment or other 
reason that the Contractor believes is a basis for a change order, the Contractor shall 
provide the County with the Contractor’s Request for a Change Order. The request 
should include: 

 a. The Contractor’s reason for requesting a Change Order; 

 b. A statement and explanation of the requested additional money or time 
requested;  

 c. The contractual provisions and substantive basis supporting the Request;  

 d. Documentation supporting the request; and  

 e. Contractor’s proposed terms and conditions. 

D. County’s Response to Request for Change Order. 

1. The County will make a written determination with respect to the Contractor’s 
Request for Change Order within thirty (30) days of receipt of the request, unless: 

 a. The County requests additional information; or 

b. The County notifies the Contractor that it needs additional time to respond 
to the request. 

2. If the County requests additional information, the County will make its written 
determination within thirty (30) days of its receipt. 

3. If the County does not make a written determination within the applicable time, the 
Request for Change Order is denied. 

E. Approval of Change Order Request. 

If the County determines that a Request for Change Order is approved, the Parties may 
negotiate acceptable terms and conditions and execute a bilateral change order, or without 
negotiation, the County may issue a unilateral change order. 

 

5.2 County Request for Change Order. 

A. In the event that the County desires to change the terms or conditions of the Work, 
it may request that the Contractor provide a written Change Proposal representing the 
Contractor’s offer to perform the requested work and the compensation for the changed 
portion of the Work. 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 11 of 16 

C. The County is under no obligation to accept the Contractor’s Change Proposal. 
Nothing in this section shall prevent the parties from negotiating the proposed terms of a 
change order.  

D. The Contractor shall not perform Change Order work until the County provides 
written authorization. 

5.3 Right-of-way Conditions; Extensions of Time Less Than 30 Days. 

A. Each party will take care to promptly inform the other of conditions in the right-of-
way that may affect the Work. 

B. If conditions in the right-of-way (including weather, fire conditions, utility work, 
or construction) require delaying all or any part of the Work, the Engineer may, in writing, 
authorize an extension of the time for performance of all or any part of the Work for a 
period thirty (30) days or less without the need for a Change Order. 

5.4 Work by the County. 

In the event that the Contractor is unable, or unwilling to perform applications as directed by the 
County, the County reserves the right to perform such Work as is necessary to complete the 
Work. The Contractor shall not be paid for any portion of Work performed by the County under 
this provision and shall have no claim or right against the County for losses or other damages 
resulting from the County’s performance of the Work  

ARTICLE 6: DURATION; TERMINATION 

6.1 Duration. 

A. The duration (initial term) of this Contract shall be for a period three years effective 
upon date of last execution by a party and may be extended by mutual written consent of 
the parties for up to two (2) one-year extensions.   

B. A Party desiring one-year extension of this Contract, shall notify the other Party in 
writing at least 90 days prior to the expiration of the then-existing remaining term of the 
Contract.   

C. If either Party declines in writing to extend the Contract, or if the Parties have not 
executed a bilateral extension contract at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the 
then-existing term, the Contract will terminate on the last day of such term. 

D. The initial term together with one-year extensions shall not exceed a total of five 
years. 

6.2 Termination. 

A party may terminate this Contract upon sixty (60) days written notice sent by certified mail to 
the other party. 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 12 of 16 

ARTICLE 7: PAYMENT 

7.1 Compensation. 

A. The Contractor is solely responsible for all costs of labor, equipment, fuel, supplies, 
and other facilities and services (including federal and state tax, industrial insurance, social 
security liability and all other applicable taxes, except sales tax for services provided to the 
County) necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work; 

B.  The compensation for Contract performance is a flat-rate of $37.50 per shoulder 
mile of residual herbicide treated right of way, $40.00 per shoulder mile for foliar and a 
$200 hourly service rate for spot treatment. 

7.2 Applications for Payment. 

The Contractor may claim progress payments on a monthly basis for all parts of the Work 
completed during the month for which a billing is submitted.  The following shall apply to payment 
for the Work: 

A. The monthly billing shall be supported by a detailed statement showing shoulder 
miles treated with herbicide, dates of application, crew, work hours, and equipment 
expended.  

B. Invoices and supporting documents shall be submitted to: 

   Chelan County Public Works Department 
   Attn: Accounts Payable 
   316 Washington, Suite 402 
   Wenatchee, WA 98801 

ARTICLE 8:  MISCELLANEOUS 

8.1 Indemnification/Hold Harmless. 

 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless the County, and all officials, agents and employees of the County, from and against all 
claims arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Contract.  “Claim” as used in this 
contract means any financial loss, claim, suit, action, damage, or expense, including but not limited 
to attorney’s fees, attributable for bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or injury to or 
destruction of tangible property including loss of use.  Contractor’s obligation to indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless includes any claim by Contractor’s agents, employees, representatives, 
or any subcontractor or its employees.  Contractor expressly agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless the County for any claim arising out of or incident to Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s 
performance, failure to perform the contract, or failure to be properly insured.   

THE CONTRACTOR WAIVES ITS IMMUNITY UNDER TITLE 51 RCW TO THE EXTENT 
IT IS REQUIRED TO HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, OFFICIALS, 
AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES. 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 13 of 16 

Contractor Initials:  ___________ 

8.2 Insurance Requirements. 

A. The Contractor shall at all time during the term of this Contract at its cost and 
expense, buy and maintain insurance of the types and amounts listed below with an 
insurance company authorized to do business in the State of Washington.  Failure to buy 
and maintain the required insurance may result in termination of the Contract at the 
County’s option. 

B. Contractor shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) insurance, and, if 
necessary, commercial umbrella insurance with a limit of not less than $3,000,000 per each 
occurrence.  If such CGL insurance contains aggregate limits, the General Aggregate limit 
shall be at least twice the “each occurrence” limit.  CGL insurance shall have products-
completed operations aggregate limit of at least two times the “each occurrence” limit. 

C. Contractor shall maintain pollution and environmental liability insurance with first 
and third party coverage and a limit of not less than $3,000,000 per each occurrence and an 
aggregate limit of at least twice the “each occurrence” limit. 

D. Contractor shall maintain business automobile liability insurance and, if necessary, 
commercial umbrella liability insurance with a limit of not less than $3,000,000 per 
accident.  Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of “Any Auto”. 

E. All of the insurance required by Contract shall be endorsed to include the County 
as an additional insured and shall stipulate that the insurance afforded by the policies shall 
be primary insurance and that any insurance, self-insured retention, deductibles, or risk 
retention trusts maintained or participated in by the Parties shall be excess and not 
contributory to insurance required.  All liability insurance policies will be endorsed to show 
this additional coverage. 

8.3 Compensation, Wages, Benefits and Taxes. 

The County assumes no responsibility for the payment of any compensation, wages, benefits, or 
taxes owed by the Contractor by reason of this Contract. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold 
the County, its officers, agents, and employees, harmless against all liability and costs resulting 
from the Contractor’s failure to pay any compensation, wages, benefits or taxes.  

 

8.4 Nondiscrimination. 

The Contractor agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, marital status, or the presence of any 
physical, sensory, or mental disability, or other status protected from discrimination by United 
States and Washington State law, including the Washington State Law Against Discrimination 
(RCW chapter 49.60) or the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.). The 
Contractor understands and agrees that if the Contractor violates this nondiscrimination 
provision, this Contract may be terminated by the County and further that the Contractor shall be 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 14 of 16 

barred from performing any services for the County now or in the future, unless a showing is 
made satisfactory to the County that discriminatory practices have terminated and that recurrence 
of such action is unlikely. 

8.5 No Waiver. 

Payment for any part of the work by the County shall not constitute a waiver by the County of any 
remedies of any type it may have against the Contractor for any breach of this Contract by the 
Contractor, or for failure of the Contractor to perform work required of it by the County. 
Forbearance of any rights under the Contract will not constitute waiver of entitlement to exercise 
those rights with respect to any future act or omission by the Contractor. 

8.6 Dispute Resolution. 

Before either Party commences an action or lawsuit against the other related this Contract, the 
Parties’ representatives shall promptly meet face-to-face at the Chelan County Public Works 
Department conference room, or other mutually agreed location, and attempt good-faith 
negotiation to resolve any dispute involving this Contract. A party’s failure or refusal to timely 
participate in such meeting and negotiation shall excuse the other party from this requirement. 

8.7 Headings. 

The headings used in this Contract are for convenience only and shall not be considered a part of 
or affect the construction or interpretation of any provision herein. 

8.8 Applicable of Law; Venue. 

A. The Contractor shall comply with all federal, Washington State, tribal and Chelan 
County laws, codes, rules and regulations applicable to the Work.  

B. This Contract shall be governed by, and interpreted under, the laws of the State of 
Washington. 

C. Any action, suit, or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of this Contract shall 
be brought in the Superior Court for the State of Washington in Chelan County, 
Washington.  Each party shall be responsible for its own attorney’s fees and costs. 

8.9 Successors and Assigns. 

The County and the Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives to the other with respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in 
this contract.  

8.11 Severability. 

The provisions of this Contract shall be effective in all cases unless otherwise prohibited by 
Washington State or applicable federal law.  The provisions of the Contract are separate and 
severable.  The invalidity of a sentence, paragraph, provision, section, Article, or portion of this 
Contract shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the Contract. 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 15 of 16 

CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
  
Printed Name:  ____________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________ 
  
Dated:  ___________________ 
 
  

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



 

Contract for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides - 2024 Page 16 of 16 

 
Dated at Wenatchee, Washington this _______ day of _____________________, 2024. 
 
 

  BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
  FOR CHELAN COUNTY 
   
   
  KEVIN OVERBAY, Chair 
   
   
   
  SHON SMITH, Commissioner 
   
   
   
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  ANABEL TORRES 

 TIFFANY GERING, Commissioner 

   
   
Clerk of the Board   
Dated:  _______________   
   
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
   
   
   
ROBERT SEALBY   
Prosecuting Attorney   
   
Dated: _______________   
   

 
 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



            1063 Emerson Road 

Ellensburg, WA 98926 

Tel 509.968.9675 

woodland@gowrs.com 

 

 
February 29, 2024 

 

Chelan County 

Public Works Department 

Josh Patrick 

316 Washington Street, Suite 402 

Wenatchee, WA 98801 

 

Re:  Proposal for Maintenance Spraying on County Roadsides  

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

Following is our proposal to supply herbicide application services along Chelan County’s approximately 

1,100 shoulder miles of right-of-way.  

 

Company Information 

Name: Woodland Resource Services, Inc. 

UBI: 602-678-209 

 

Fee Schedule 

Woodland Resource Services, Inc. (WRS) proposes to provide herbicide application services to Chelan 

County as required in the following breakdowns (plus applicable sales taxes): 

  

• Spring/Fall soil based residual herbicide application:  $37.50/shoulder mile 

 

WRS may be available for post-emergent applications but cannot guarantee availability. 

• Contact foliar applications throughout growing season:  $40.00/shoulder mile 

• Hourly service rate for spot treatment/specialty applications $200/hr from (WRS) shop 

 

Hourly service rate to be used at WRS’ discretion if daily mileage total does not exceed (50) shoulder 

miles, or (25) centerline miles due to segmented areas of spot spraying etc.  Minimum daily service charge 

to be (4) hours excepting weather delays. 

 

Application mileage readings will be taken from spray truck odometer and will include periodic skips such 

as no-spray zones contained within the targeted application zone. 

 

Treatment Methods 

Residual: From 6”-12” on existing asphalt to the ditch bottom (up to 11’ wide)  

Broadleaf Foliar: From 6”-12” on existing asphalt up to edge of noxious weed infestation, existing 

landscaping or crops, or 11’ from edge of roadway whichever is less  

 

Program Schedule 

WRS feels comfortable meeting the proposed program schedule as we have performed these applications 

for Chelan County in the past and can typically treat 60-80 shoulder miles/day.  

 

 

 

CAREFUL, QUALITY-CONSCIOUS VEGETATION MANAGEMENT. ™ 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



References (partial listing) 

1. Yakima County Public Works Department 

Chris Albert, Road Maintenance Supervisor 

128 N. 2nd Street 

Yakima, WA 98901 

Phone 509.574.2423 

- Completed fall soil based residual programs and contact foliar 2005-2021 and 2024-

present.  Currently under annually renewable contract to provide vegetation 

management services. 

 

2. Weyerhaeuser Company, Vail Tree Farm 

Maria Erdmann 

16506 Vail Loop Rd. 

Rainier, WA 98576 

Phone 360.226.0794 

- Completed roadside brush control program on Vail Tree Farm’s approximately 2,000 

miles of forest right of ways since early 1990’s.  Currently contracted on year to year 

basis. 

 

3. King County Noxious Weed Control Program 

Steve Burke, Manager 

201 South Jackson Street, Suite 600 

Seattle, WA 98104-3855 

Phone 206.296.0290 

- WRS has provided vegetation management services under contract since 2002 on an 

as needed basis.  Scope of work has ranged from small, targeted applications in hard 

to access sites to large scale, control measures including mechanical removal. 

 

4. Kittitas County Public Works Department 

Ryan Berge, Road Maintenance Supervisor 
411 North Ruby, Suite 1 

Ellensburg, WA 98926 

Phone 509.856.7749 

- Completed contact foliar weed control to 300 shoulder miles of Kittitas County 

roadways as requested since 2013.  

 

Record Keeping 

WRS maintains spray records daily on state-approved spray logs as well as recording spray locations 

on county-provided maps, which are then kept on file. GPS application data (in shapefile format) is also 

kept on file and provided to the customer as requested.  

    

Equipment 

 

WSDA # Description 
Injection 

Systems 
GPS 

G721 ’16 F550 600 gallon spray truck 3 Yes 

B404 ’06 F350 400 gallon spray truck 0 No 

F863 ’22 F550 600 gallon spray truck 3 Yes 

G738 ’15 F550 900 gallon spray truck Split tank Yes 

B403 ’17 F350 300 gallon spray truck 0 No 

H904 ’17 F550 750 gallon spray truck 0 Yes 

J375 ’19 F550 750 gallon spray truck 0 Yes 

 

Personnel 

WRS licensed applicators include: Aaron Royer, Eric Meador, Erik Mullenix, Quinton Hufford, Sam 

Sparks, Eli Davis, Mike Lawson, and occasionally other part-time and/or seasonal licensed applicators.  

 

Sincerely, 

Eric Meador 

President, Woodland Resource Services, Inc. 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

12/29/2023

(509) 248-3515 (509) 248-3673

Woodland Resource Services Inc
Crystal Clear Custom Services
1063 Emerson Rd
Ellensburg, WA 98926

15377
44776

A 2,000,000

LIP00070PK000352-00 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 100,000
Contractor GL 5,000

2,000,000
3,000,000
3,000,000

WA STOP GAP 1,000,000
1,000,000B

CPP1227829 12/31/2023 12/31/2024

4,000,000C
86144D225AL1 12/31/2022 12/31/2023 4,000,000

B UMB *Auto UMB1038882 12/31/2023 Retention $10,000 2,000,000
D POLLUTION LIABILITY MNGR-P-2000915 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 AGGREGATE LIMIT 5,000,000

*SAMPLE* *SAMPLE* *SAMPLE* *SAMPLE* *SAMPLE* *SAMPLE* *SAMPLE* 

per written contract is additional insured which includes waiver of subrogation, primary and non-contributory coverage and completed operations per form 
CG7827 0213 attached.
Auto Additional Insured per form WNCA80 0619 *Auto Umbrella following form

*SAMPLE* *SAMPLE* *SAMPLE* *SAMPLE* *SAMPLE* *SAMPLE* *SAMPLE*

Woodland Resource Services, Inc **SAMPLE*
1063 Emerson Rd
Ellensburg, WA 98926

WOODRES-01 LWELCH

Terril, Lewis & Wilke Insurance, Inc.
P.O. Box 1789
Yakima, WA 98907 certs@tlwins.com

Accelerant Specialty Insurance Company
Western National Mutual Insurance Co
Starstone Specialty Ins Co
Benchmark Specilaty Insurance Company

12/31/2024

X
X

X

X

X

X
X

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



2/29/24, 4:26 PM Washington State Department of Agriculture

https://agr.wa.gov/services/licenses-permits-and-certificates/pesticide-license-and-recertification/pesticide-and-spi-licensing/license-search/searc… 1/4

Company Information

PESTICIDE AND SPI LICENSING SEARCH

RESULTS

If you have questions on this license record, contact Pesticide Licensing toll free at (877) 301-4555
or by email at  .

Remember to always request picture ID to confirm identity!

license@agr.wa.gov

COMPANY NAME:

Woodland Resource Services Inc

UBI NUMBER :*

602678209

DBA:

No DBA

BRANCHES:

No Branches

SITE ADDRESS

1063 Emerson Rd Ellensburg WA

MAILING ADDRESS:

1063 Emerson Rd Ellensburg WA

TELEPHONE:

(509) 968-9675

FAX:

EMAIL

meadoree@embarqmail.com

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24

mailto:license@agr.wa.gov
https://agr.wa.gov/


2/29/24, 4:26 PM Washington State Department of Agriculture

https://agr.wa.gov/services/licenses-permits-and-certificates/pesticide-license-and-recertification/pesticide-and-spi-licensing/license-search/searc… 2/4

* Note: this UBI Number is supplied by the applicant. It has not been independently verified by WSDA. For further
information, go to the Dept. of Revenue  website.

Commercial Applicator (CA) Information

Note: Commercial Applicators must be licensed in all categories in which the company operates.

Company-employed Commercial Operators (CO) (9)

NAME:

Eric E Meador

LICENSE NUMBER:

62566

LICENSE STATUS:

Renewed 

LICENSE EXPIRES:

12/31/2024

ENDORSEMENTS:

Agricultural Insect and Disease   , Agricultural Weed   , Aquatic   , Ornamental Weed   , Rights-
of-Way Weed   , Soil Fumigation   , Soil Fumigation RMM   , Stump Treatment  

CA INSURANCE EXPIRES

GROUND AERIAL

12/31/2024 n/a

Note: On this date a completed Financial Responsibility Insurance Certificate must be on file with WSDA or
license is invalid.

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24

http://secure.dor.wa.gov/gteunauth
http://secure.dor.wa.gov/gteunauth
https://agr.wa.gov/services/licenses-permits-and-certificates/pesticide-license-and-recertification/pesticide-and-spi-licensing/commercial-applicators-and-structural-pest-inspectors


2/29/24, 4:26 PM Washington State Department of Agriculture

https://agr.wa.gov/services/licenses-permits-and-certificates/pesticide-license-and-recertification/pesticide-and-spi-licensing/license-search/searc… 3/4

NAME LICENSE NUMBER CO LICENSE EXPIRES

Linus Bauer 99880 12/31/2023 (expired)

Elias Lorenzo Davis 108026 12/31/2024

Quinton Darrell Hufford 100555 12/31/2024

Eric E Meador 62566 12/31/2023 (expired)

Erik William Mullenix 91036 12/31/2024

Blake Deets Riley 107632 12/31/2024

Nickolas G Roberts 90147 12/31/2024

Aaron L Royer 66474 12/31/2024

Samuel Tyrell Sparks 108577 12/31/2024

Ground Equipment (16)

WSDA PLATE APPARATUS MAKE TANKS STATUS

B403 Raven 300 Gal Active

B404 Raven 24 Gal,24 Gal,400 Gal Active

B946 Skid 50 Gal,50 Gal Active

D473 Raven 200 Gal Active

D476 Ace 50 Gal Active

F862 ATV 100 Gal Active

F863 Raven 35 Gal,35 Gal,35 Gal,600 Gal Active

G721 Raven 35 Gal,35 Gal,35 Gal,600 Gal Active

G738 Raven 650 Gal,250 Gal Active

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24



2/29/24, 4:26 PM Washington State Department of Agriculture

https://agr.wa.gov/services/licenses-permits-and-certificates/pesticide-license-and-recertification/pesticide-and-spi-licensing/license-search/searc… 4/4

WSDA PLATE APPARATUS MAKE TANKS STATUS

H394 100 Gal Active

H792 50 Gal Active

H904 Raven 750 Gal Active

J375 Raven 750 Gal Active

J376 100 Gal Active

J809 100 Gal Active

J911 100 Gal Pending Renewal

Aerial Equipment (0)

TYPE WSDA PLATE N NUMBER MAKE COLOR STATUS

No aerial equipment listed

START NEW SEARCH

Copyright ©2024 Washington State Department of Agriculture. All rights reserved.
 

Public Works Agenda 3/18/24

https://agr.wa.gov/services/licenses-permits-and-certificates/pesticide-license-and-recertification/pesticide-and-spi-licensing/license-search


DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BOCC AGENDA ITEMS 

 
March19th,2024 

 
10:15 A.M  
Community Development Director Deanna Walter 
 
 
Discussion Items: 
 

1. Draft Docket 2024  
2. Public Hearing Adoption of City of Leavenworth ordinance 1651  
3. Executive session with legal counsel potential litigation. 
 
 
 

 
 
Action Items: 
 

1. Public Hearing Adoption of City of Leavenworth ordinance 1651  
 
 

 
 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-     

Re: Adoption of amendments to the Chelan County Comprehensive Plan Map designations and 
amendments to the City of Leavenworth Development Regulations for its Urban Growth Area 
(ZTA 22-419), more specifically adoption of Ordinance 1651  

 

WHEREAS, Chelan County and the City of Leavenworth have signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding dated July 8, 1997, which states that the County shall adopt the land use 
regulations, development regulations, and land use designations of the City of Leavenworth for 
its Urban Growth Area; and,  

WHEREAS, Chelan County and the City of Leavenworth have adopted Comprehensive Plans 
per the requirements of RCW 36.70A.040(4)(d), the Growth Management Act; and,  

WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.210 requires that the Comprehensive Plan be consistent with the 
provisions of the County-Wide Planning Policies; and,  

WHEREAS, the Growth Management Act requires comprehensive planning for counties and 
cities designated under its jurisdiction.  RCW 36.70A.100 details that each city’s comprehensive 
plan must be coordinated and consistent with “other counties or cities with which the county or 
city has, in part, common border or related regional issues”; and, 

WHEREAS, Chelan County Community Development acting as lead agency, issued a 
Determination of Non-Significance on October 12, 2022, which related to all amendments 
included for adoption.  The requirements of RCW 43.21 C, the State Environmental Policy Act 
and WAC 197-11 have been satisfied; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Leavenworth sent notices to the Department of Commerce for 60-day 
review prior to Leavenworth City Council adoption, consistent with RCW 36.70A.106; and, 

WHEREAS, reviewing agencies and the general public were given an opportunity to comment 
on the proposed amendments through the City of Leavenworth public hearings and adoption of 
Ordinance 1651; and, 

WHEREAS, Chelan County Code, Title 14, provides review criteria for the consideration for 
adopting amendments to comprehensive plans, maps and development regulations.  Chelan 
County followed the procedures required for amendments; and, 

WHEREAS, The Chelan County Planning Commission held a duly advertised workshop on 
September 28, 2022 to review and discuss amendments submitted by the City of Leavenworth; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the Chelan County Planning Commission held a duly advertised public hearing on 
October 26, 2022, forwarding a recommendation to adopt the proposed amendments.  Public 
testimony was taken and included in the file of record; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners conducted duly advertised workshops on 
December 20, 2022 and January 24, 2023 to review and discuss the proposed amendments; and, 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners conducted a duly advertised public hearing on 
February 28, 2023, to examine the record and recommendation of the Chelan County Planning 
Commission, and invite public testimony; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners approved the adoption of the proposed City of 
Leavenworth amendments, with the exception of Ordinance 1651 on February 28, 2023, 
pursuant to Resolution 2023-23; and  

WHEREAS, City of Leavenworth Ordinance 1651 addressed the re-designation of all RL10 and 
RL12 zoning to R8 zoning within the city limits and Urban Growth Area; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Leavenworth appealed to the Growth Management Hearings Board 
(GMHB), which issued a decision on October 3, 2023 finding the decision to not adopt 
Ordinance 1651 was inconsistent with the Growth Management Act; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners conducted a duly advertised public hearing, 
pursuant to the GMHB decision of October 3, 2023, on March 19, 2024, to examine the record 
and recommendation of the Chelan County Planning Commission, and invite public testimony.  

WHEREAS, in order to comply with the order of the Growth Management Hearings Board, the 
adoption of City of Leavenworth Ordinance 1651 is necessary. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Chelan County Commissioners 
hereby adopts City of Leavenworth Ordinance 1651 attached hereto as Exhibit A, re-designating 
all RL 10 and RL12 zoning to R8 zoning, including the official zoning map demonstrating such.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after May 19, 2024.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this decision is hereby signed into authentication on the 
following date,  

Dated this 19th day of March, 2024  

BOARD OF CHELAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

              
        Kevin Overbay, Chairman 
 
 
              
ATTEST: Anabel Torres     Shon Smith, Commissioner 
 
     
              
Clerk of the Board      Tiffany Gering, Commissioner 
 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



ZTA 2022-419     Staff Report      Page 1 of 3  
2022 City of Leavenworth Urban Growth Area Amendment 

CHELAN COUNTY  

           DEPARTMENT Of COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

 
City of Leavenworth Urban Growth Area Amendment 

Staff Report  

 

TO:  

FROM:  

HEARING DATE:  

FILE NUMBER:  

Chelan County Board of County Commissioners  

Chelan County Community Development  

January 30, 2024 

ZTA 22-419 

 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION  
These proposals are recommended for adoption. Adoption of the proposed amendments aligns with countywide 
planning policies, county planning policies, and the 1997 interlocal planning MOU and RCW 36.70A.100. Land use 
changes are not in conflict with Chelan County planning policies and proper public notice procedures have been 
followed.  

 

A. Move to recommend the adoption of Ordinance 1651, amending the City of Leavenworth Municipal Code 
regarding re-designating all RL10 and RL12 zoned properties within the Urban Growth Area to RL8.  This 
recommendation for adoption is pursuant to the GMHB Case # (insert case #), decided upon (insert date), 2023 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION  

Applicant  City of Leavenworth  

Planning Commission Hearing  October 26, 2022 

60-day State agency review Initiated: August 2022  

SEPA Determination  October 12, 2022 

Board of County Commissioner Hearing February 28, 2023 

Growth Management Hearing Board Hearing Order October 3, 2023 

Board of County Commissioner Notice of Hearing 
Published February 1, 2024 

Board of County Commissioner Hearing February 13, 2024 

 

 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



ZTA 2022-419     Staff Report      Page 2 of 3  
2022 City of Leavenworth Urban Growth Area Amendment 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION – ZTA 2022-419  
Proposal: The City of Leavenworth has submitted Ordinance 1651, which includes changes to the Leavenworth 
Municipal Code concerning re-designation of all RL10 and RL12 zoned properties to RL8, which impact the Urban 
Growth Area (UGA). 
 

Review Criteria 

These regulations are evaluated in accordance with Chelan County Code Section 14.13.040 Development Regulation 
Amendment evaluation criteria and Chelan County Code Section 14.14.047 Amendment review criteria for 
comprehensive plan and zoning text changes. These criteria determine the process for approval, modification, or denial 
of regulation amendment applications and text amendments to county-adopted city comprehensive plans. 

 
1. The amendment is necessary to resolve a public land use issue or problem. 
 
Finding: In the 1997 interlocal planning MOU, Chelan County established policies with the City of Leavenworth 
regarding land use regulations within its Urban Growth Area (UGA). Chelan County agreed to adopt the 
city’s “land use regulations, development standards and land use designations for the city’s UGA.” The County also 
agreed to implement the city’s “street, street lighting, curb, gutter and sidewalk design standards” within the UGA. 
 
GMA requires comprehensive planning for counties and cities designated under its jurisdiction. RCW 
36.70A.100 details that each city’s comprehensive plan must be coordinated and consistent with “other 
counties or cities with which the county or city has, in part, common border or related regional issues”. 
 
Chelan County has not previously adopted this Ordinance 1651 for the re-designation of all RL10 and RL12 zoning to RL8 
zoning.  The decision to not adopt Ordinance 1651 was appealed to the Growth Management Hearings Board (GMHB).  
The GMHB issued a decision on October 3, 2023 finding the decision not to adopt Ordinance 1651 was inconsistent with 
the Growth Management Act.  Adoption of this ordinance will bring the County 
into alignment with the agreement outlined in the 1997 MOU, relevant state planning policies, and the GMHB decision. 
 
2. The amendment is consistent with goals of the Growth Management Act, Chapter 36.70A RCW. 
 
Finding: The GMA planning goals include but are not limited to the following: 
 

(1) Urban growth. Encourage development in urban areas where adequate public facilities and 
services exist or can be provided in an efficient manner. 

(2) Reduce sprawl. Reduce the inappropriate conversion of undeveloped land into sprawling, low density 
development. 

(3) Housing. Encourage the availability of affordable housing to all economic segments of the 
population of this state, promote a variety of residential densities and housing types, and encourage 
preservation of existing housing stock. 

(4) Permits. Applications for both state and local government permits should be processed in a 
timely and fair manner to ensure predictability. 

(5) Environment. Protect the environment and enhance the state's high quality of life, including air 
and water quality, and the availability of water. 

 
The adoption of the city’s comprehensive plan amendments and land use regulations within the UGA is 
consistent with the first two GMA goals, to encourage development in urban areas and to reduce sprawl. 
 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



ZTA 2022-419     Staff Report      Page 3 of 3  
2022 City of Leavenworth Urban Growth Area Amendment 

3. The amendment complies with or supports comprehensive plan goals and policies and/or county-wide planning 
policies, or how amendment of the comprehensive plans’ goals or policies is supported by changing conditions or 
state or federal mandates. 

 
Finding: The City of Leavenworth has reviewed and found Ordinance 1651 consistent with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan goals and policies. The County-wide Planning Policies support the use of the City 
regulations within the UGAs and adoption of city comprehensive plan amendments. 
 
4. The proposed amendment does not adversely affect lands designated as resource lands of long-term commercial 

significance or critical areas in ways that cannot be mitigated. 
 
Finding: The proposed amendments do not change resource lands or critical area regulations which 
would be reviewed based on the site-specific development at the time of future permit.  
 
5. The amendment is based on sound land use planning practices and would further the general public health, safety 

and welfare. The comprehensive plan amendment would serve the interests of not only the applicant, but the 
public as a whole, including health, safety, or welfare. 

 
Finding: The proposed amendments are the result of appropriate planning processes to reflect the City’s desire for 
development. 

 
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW  
1. The amendments to the Chelan County development regulations are consistent with the requirements of the 

Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A), Chelan County Comprehensive Plan and County-Wide Planning 
Policies.  

2. The amendments are necessary to address a public land use issue or problem.  
3. The amendments do not adversely affect designated resource lands of long-term commercial significance or 

designated critical areas in ways that cannot be mitigated.  
4. Reviewing agencies and the general public were given an opportunity to comment on the proposed 

amendments.  
5. The amendments are consistent with Chelan County Code Title 14 Development Permit Procedures and 

Administration.   
6. The requirements of RCW 43.21C, the State Environmental Policy Act and WAC 197-11 SEPA Rules have been 

satisfied. 
7. The amendment is consistent with the GMHB decision of October 3, 2023.  
8. The adoption of these amendments is in the best interest of the public and furthers the health, safety, and 

welfare of the citizens of Chelan County.  

  
ATTACHMENTS  

1. Staff report to the Chelan County Planning Commission 
2. Ordinance 1651, City of Leavenworth 
3. Agency and Public Comments (none at time of staff report issuance) 
4. Growth Management Hearing Board Decision dated October 3, 2023 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



ZTA-22-419 Staff Report 2022   Page 1 of 12 

CHELAN COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT Of COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

2022 Comprehensive Plan Amendment  
Staff Report 

 

TO: Chelan County Board of Commissioners 

FROM: Department of Community Development 

HEARING DATE: January 31, 2023 

FILE NUMBER: ZTA-22-419 (Proposed 2022 Leavenworth Urban Growth Area Amendments) 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION 

The Planning Commission has recommended adoption of this proposal. Adoption of the proposed 
amendments aligns with countywide planning policies, county planning policies, and the 1997 interlocal 
planning MOU and RCW 36.70A.100. Land use changes are not in conflict with Chelan County planning 
policies and proper public notice procedures have been followed. Staff recommends: 

A. Move to approve the proposed Leavenworth Urban Growth Area Amendments, given file number 
ZTA-22-419, based upon the findings of fact and conclusions of law contained within this January 
31, 2023 report. 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Applicant Chelan County 

Planning Commission Workshop September 27 and 28, 2022 

Planning Commission Notice of Hearing October 12, 2022 

Planning Commission Hearing on October 26, 2022 

(Recommendation: Approval, with the exception of 
removing reference to 18.42.030  
in City of Leavenworth Ord #1654) 

Board of County Commissioners Workshop December 20, 2022 and January 24, 2023 

BOCC Notice of Hearing Published January 21, 2023 

60-day State agency review Initiated: October 6, 2022 

SEPA Determination October 12, 2022 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



ZTA-22-419 Staff Report 2022   Page 2 of 12 

SEPA Environmental Review 

A Determination of Non-Significance was issued under WAC 197-11-355 for ZTA-22-419 on October 12, 
2022 (Attachment 1). The lead agency for this proposal has determined that it does not have a probable 
significant adverse impact on the environment. An Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) is not required 
under RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c). The decision was made after a review of a completed environmental 
checklist and other information on file with the lead agency.  

Agency Comments: 

None received to date. (If received prior to hearing, will be Attachment 2.) 

Public Comment: 

None received to date. (If received prior to hearing, will be Attachment 2.) 

60-Day Notice:  

Sent to Department of Commerce October 6, 2022. Letter of acknowledgement included as attachment 
3. Revised notice was mailed to the Department of Commerce. 

A. Introduction & Background 

The City of Leavenworth has submitted 14 proposed amendments to its Urban Growth Area (UGA) 
Development Regulations. These are summarized in the table below. See Attachment 6 for the full text of 
each amendment, along with SEPA documentation.  
 

Exhibit 1. Land Use Regulation Changes in Leavenworth Urban Growth Area 

Ordinance Description 

1542 Update Bed & Breakfast (short-term rentals) regulations 

1543 Update and clarify Duplex and ADU regulations 

1583 Define zero lot line development and provide standards 

1585 Permit cryptocurrency in the light industrial district 

1588 Update planned development district and define affordable housing 

1590 Regulate and allow mechanical stacked parking 

1596 Amend code regarding: 

• Concurrency standards for public facilities and utilities 
• Development standards for manufactured homes 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



ZTA-22-419 Staff Report 2022   Page 3 of 12 

• Permitted uses in commercial districts 
• Development code administration for Comprehensive Plan amendments and 

Development Regulation amendment process 
• Official zoning map 

1627 Create new district use chart, revise definitions and land use regulations 

1628 Address code consistencies. Amend chapters about code interpretation and variances. 
Amend Supplementary Regulations regarding:  

• Visibility obstructions 
• Fences 
• Accessory buildings 
• ADUs 
• Bed and Breakfast facilities 
• Duplexes 
• Building height limit exceptions 
• Home occupations 
• Major recreational equipment 
• Unlicensed vehicles 
• Yard requirements 
• Decks, patios, and balconies 

1650 Amend Comprehensive Plan with updated Land Capacity Analysis, and updates Land 
Use Designations map 

1651 Replace RL10 and RL12 zoning districts with new R-8 district and update District Use 
chart and official zoning map 

1654 Establish Affordable Housing Incentive Program to encourage development of housing 
units for households with low and moderate incomes 

 

B. Chelan County Code Requirements 

These regulations are evaluated in accordance with Chelan County Code Section 14.13.040 
Development Regulation Amendment evaluation criteria, Chelan County Code Section 14.14.047 
Amendment review criteria for comprehensive plan text changes, and Chelan County Code Section 
14.14.060 for Comprehensive Plan Maps. These criteria determine the process for approval, 
modification, or denial of regulation amendment applications and text amendments to county-adopted city 
comprehensive plans.  

(1) The amendment/proposal is necessary to resolve a public land use issue or problem. 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



ZTA-22-419 Staff Report 2022   Page 4 of 12 

Finding: In the 1997 interlocal planning MOU, Chelan County establishes policies with the City of 
Leavenworth regarding land use regulations within its Urban Growth Area (UGA). Chelan County agrees 
to adopt the city’s “land use regulations, development standards and land use designations for the city’s 
UGA.” The County also agrees to implement the city’s “street, street lighting, curb, gutter and sidewalk 
design standards” within the UGA.  

GMA requires comprehensive planning for counties and cities designated under its jurisdiction. RCW 
36.70A.100 details that each city’s comprehensive plan must be coordinated and consistent with “other 
counties or cities with which the county or city has, in part, common border or related regional issues”.  

Chelan County has not adopted relevant land use changes and comprehensive plan amendments for the 
city of Leavenworth’s UGA since 2016. This amendment is necessary to resolve this issue, including 
amendments from 2016–2022, and bring the County into alignment with the agreement outlined in the 
MOU and relevant state planning policies.  

(2) The amendment is consistent with goals of the Growth Management Act, 
Chapter 36.70A RCW. 

Finding: The GMA planning goals include but are not limited to the following:  

1. Urban growth. Encourage development in urban areas where adequate public facilities and 
services exist or can be provided in an efficient manner. 

2. Reduce sprawl. Reduce the inappropriate conversion of undeveloped land into sprawling, low-
density development. 

3. Housing. Encourage the availability of affordable housing to all economic segments of the 
population of this state, promote a variety of residential densities and housing types, and 
encourage preservation of existing housing stock. 

4. Economic development. Encourage economic development throughout the state that is 
consistent with adopted comprehensive plans, promote economic opportunity for all citizens of 
this state, especially for unemployed and for disadvantaged persons, promote the retention 
and expansion of existing businesses and recruitment of new businesses, recognize regional 
differences impacting economic development opportunities, and encourage growth in areas 
experiencing insufficient economic growth, all within the capacities of the state's natural 
resources, public services, and public facilities. 

5. Permits. Applications for both state and local government permits should be processed in a 
timely and fair manner to ensure predictability. 

The adoption of the city’s comprehensive plan amendments and land use regulations within the UGA is 
consistent with the first two GMA goals, to encourage development in urban areas and to reduce sprawl. 
Housing and subdivision related amendments included for adoption promote the variety of residential 
densities in housing types within the UGA. Other land use updates encourage economic development 
consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan. Updating standards within the UGA will also support the 
timely review and processing of development applications to ensure predictability.  

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 

https://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=36.70A


ZTA-22-419 Staff Report 2022   Page 5 of 12 

(3) The amendment complies with or supports comprehensive plan goals and policies and/or 
county-wide planning policies, or how amendment of the comprehensive plans’ goals or policies 
is supported by changing conditions or state or federal mandates. 

Finding: The City of Leavenworth has reviewed and found the proposed amendments consistent with the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan goals and policies. The County-wide Planning Policies support the use of the 
City regulations within the UGAs and adoption of city comprehensive plan amendments. 

(4) The proposed amendment does not adversely affect lands designated as resource lands of 
long-term commercial significance or critical areas in ways that cannot be mitigated. 

Finding: The proposed amendments do not change resource lands or critical area regulations which 
would be reviewed based on the site-specific development at the time of future permit.  

(5) The amendment is based on sound land use planning practices and would further the 
general public health, safety and welfare. The comprehensive plan amendment would serve the 
interests of not only the applicant, but the public as a whole, including health, safety, or 
welfare.  

Finding: The proposed amendments are the result of appropriate planning processes to reflect the 
community desire for development.  

C. Procedural Requirements  

Appropriate City procedures have been followed for each amendment proposed for County adoption 
including hearing notices, 60-day notices to the State Department of Commerce (several of which were 
jointly noted for the City and County). The State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) was addressed based 
on the determinations of the City’s responsible official. The County has included the amendments in its 
2022 Docket with a notice to the Department of Commerce, hearing notice, and review of the City’s 
SEPA documents and adoption. Additionally, a set of housing-related ordinances incorporated extra 
public engagement effort. In 2021 and 2022 the City publicized the discussion of housing code 
amendments (including Ordinances 1640, 1650, 1651, and 1654 regarding R-8 zoning, duplexes, and 
low-income housing development) by mailing a postcard to local residents with information about the 
Housing Action Plan and current discussions about housing code amendments, a link to a public-facing 
page about housing on the City’s website, and an invitation to meet with Development Services staff.    

D. Ordinance Descriptions 

Ordinance 1542 amends LMC Chapter 18.52.120 to clarify and update the Bed and Breakfast (short-term 
/ vacation / overnight rentals in residential neighborhoods) regulations, criteria, and standards. It requires 
bed and breakfast facilities to be the principal residence of the property owner, sets limits on number of 
occupants, sets sign standards and parking requirements, and establishes an inspection and permitting 
process.  

Note: Per CCC 11.88.290 (C) (iv) The board of Chelan County commissioners adopts the 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



ZTA-22-419 Staff Report 2022   Page 6 of 12 

cities of Cashmere, Chelan, Entiat, Leavenworth, and Wenatchee land use regulations, 
development standards and land use designations, as they apply to short-term or 
vacation rentals of fewer than thirty consecutive nights or days, within the county 
adopted unincorporated urban growth area respecting each city as it is now or is 
hereafter amended for the cities of Cashmere, Chelan, Entiat, Leavenworth, and 
Wenatchee; provided, that any city regulation requiring acquisition of a business license 
is not adopted nor incorporated as a county regulation and that instead a conditional 
use permit may be required, and the county’s review procedures in this section must 
control. 

Ordinance 1543 updates and clarifies ADU and Duplex regulations in LMC 18.20, 18.21, 18.22, and 
18.23 (permitted and conditional uses in RL6, RL12, Multifamily Residential, and RL10 districts). It allows 
ADUs as a permitted use in these districts, and sets requirements including non-transient use, a limit of 
one ADU per home site, minimum one parking space, and maximum 1,200 square feet. The ordinance 
requires a minimum lot size of 12,000 square feet for duplexes. 

Ordinance 1583 defines zero lot line development in LMC Chapter 21.90, and amends Chapter 
18.24.090 to provide standards for yards, setbacks, lot coverage, and design articulation. 

Ordinance 1585 defines cryptocurrency mining in LMC Chapter 21.90.030, and amends Chapter 
18.45.20 to permit cryptocurrency mining facilities in the light industrial district and requires verification of 
meeting Chelan County PUD requirements, electrical consumption impacts, and a permit from 
Washington State Department of Labor and Industries. 

Ordinance 1588 updates Chapter 18.40 to set requirements for residential or multiple-use Planned 
Development as a conditional use, including public benefit, perimeter transitions, minimum site size and 
scope, road improvements, density, setbacks, height limits, maximum site coverage, parking, recreation 
areas, and other characteristics. 

Ordinance 1590 defines stacked parking in Chapter 21.90.030 and sets design requirements. It permits 
stacked parking in General Commercial, Central Commercial, Tourist Commercial, Residential Low 
Density RL6, RL10, and RL12, and Multifamily Residential districts. 

Ordinance 1596 amends the code in the following areas: 

• Chapter 14.14 and 17.020.070 — Concurrency for public facilities and utilities 

• 14.16.080 — Manufactured home standards 

• 18.28.020, 18.32.020, and 18.44.020 — Permitted and conditional uses in the General 
Commercial, Central Commercial, and Tourist Commercial districts. 

• Development code administration: 

o 21.31.030 — General time frame for Comprehensive Plan amendments 

o 21.35.010 — Initiation of development regulation and zoning map amendments 

o 21.03.030 — City Council review of recommendations of the Planning Commission 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



ZTA-22-419 Staff Report 2022   Page 7 of 12 

o 18.12.010 — Official zoning map amendments 

o 18.12.040 — Penalty for unauthorized change of the official zoning map 

o 18.12.050 — Official zoning map shall be maintained at City Hall   

Ordinance 1610 amends the code regarding subdivisions in the following areas: 

• Chapter 17.080.010 and 17.08.070, regulating Short Plats, divisions of land into nine or fewer 
plots 

• 17.12.010 — Chapter applies to Major Subdivisions of land into ten or more plots 

• 21.90.030 — Amending definitions of final short plat, final plat, major subdivision, and short 
subdivision 

Ordinance 1627 creates a new district use chart, and revises definitions and land use regulations. 

Ordinance 1628 addresses code consistencies, amends Chapter 18.04.030 regarding code interpretation 
and variances, and amends Supplementary Regulations regarding:  

• 18.35.005 — Purpose and Applicability of supplementary regulations 

• 18.35.010 — Visibility obstructions 

• 18.35.020 — Fences, walls, and hedges 

• 18.35.030 — Accessory buildings 

• 18.35.035 — Accessory Dwelling Units 

• 18.35.038 — Bed and Breakfast facilities 

• 18.35.040 — Prohibiting more than one principal structure in low-density residential districts 

• 18.35.045 — Duplex dwellings 

• 18.35.050 — Exceptions to building height limits 

• 18.35.060 — Home occupations 

• 18.35.070 — Major recreational equipment 

• 18.35.080 — Unlicensed vehicles: parking and storage restrictions 

• 18.35.090 — Yard modification requirements 

• 18.35.100 — Decks, patios, and balconies 

Ordinance 1640 removes minimum lot size requirement for duplexes, making it the same as for single 
family dwellings, in RL6, RL12, and RL10 districts. It amends Chapter 21.90 definitions for duplex and 
removes duplexes as a conditional use in Chapter 18.52.130.  

Ordinance 1650 amends the Comprehensive Plan with an updated Land Capacity Analysis and an 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



ZTA-22-419 Staff Report 2022   Page 8 of 12 

updated 2021 Land Use Designations map that includes a new R8 zone. The related Ordinance1651 
amends the zoning code and adopts the new official zoning map. Maps in Figure 1 and Figure 2 below 
show where RL10 and RL12 zones are changed to the new R8 zone. 

Ordinance 1651 amends Chapter 18.21 to replace RL10 and RL12 zoning districts with a new R8 district 
and updates the District Use chart and official zoning map to reflect this change. The R8 district permits 
single family residences, duplexes, and accessory dwelling units, with a minimum lot size of 8,000 square 
feet. Areas where RL10 and RL12 zones are changed to R8 are shown in the yellow areas on the map in 
Figure 1and dashed yellow outlines on the map in Figure 2 below. 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



ZTA-22-419 Staff Report 2022   Page 9 of 12 

Figure 1. Leavenworth Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designations 

 
  

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



ZTA-22-419 Staff Report 2022   Page 10 of 12 

Figure 2. Chelan County zoning map of area surrounding Leavenworth 

 

 
  

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



ZTA-22-419 Staff Report 2022   Page 11 of 12 

Ordinance 1654 amends Chapter 18.42 to establish the Affordable Housing Incentive Program, with the 
intent to encourage development of housing units that are affordable to service industry workers and 
others with low or moderate incomes. To incentivize development, regulations are modified pertaining to 
density, lot coverage, front yard setbacks, alley access, parking, and design standards. 

E.  Staff Conclusions 

Adoption of the proposed amendments aligns with county planning policies, per the 1997 interlocal 
planning MOU and RCW 36.70A.100. Land use changes are not in conflict with Chelan County planning 
policies and proper public notice procedures have been followed. Please refer to Attachment 6 for the full 
text of each amendment, along with SEPA documentation. Suggested findings of fact and conclusions of 
law are included below.  

F. Suggested Findings of Fact 

1. Chelan County and the City of Leavenworth have adopted Comprehensive Plans per the 
requirements of RCW 36.70A.040 (4) (d), the Growth Management Act.  

2. RCW 36.70A.210 requires that the Comprehensive Plan be consistent with the provisions of the 
adopted County-Wide Planning Policies. 

3. Chelan County has made a determination of non-significance issued on October 12, 2022. The DNS 
relates to all amendments included for adoption.  

4. The City of Leavenworth sent notices to Department of Commerce for a 60-day review prior to City 
Council adoption. The County also sent a notice to the Department of Commerce for a 60-day review 
prior to Board of County Commissioners adoption. 

5. Reviewing agencies and the general public were given an opportunity to comment on the proposed 
amendments.  

6. Chelan County Code, Title 14, provides review criteria for the consideration of adopting amendments 
to Comprehensive Plans, Maps, and Development Regulations. Chelan County followed the 
procedures required for amendments.  

7. A workshop was held with the Chelan County Planning Commission on September 28, 2022 to 
review and discuss related amendments.  

8. A Public Hearing was held with the Chelan County Planning Commission on October 26, 2022. The 
Planning Commission recommended approval of this proposal (with the exception of removing 
reference to 18.42.030 in City of Leavenworth Ordinance #1654). 

G. Suggested Conclusions of Law 

1. The proposed amendments to the City of Leavenworth UGA zoning code and development 
regulations address a public need or a land use issue.  

2. The proposed amendments are consistent with the City of Leavenworth Urban Area Comprehensive 
Plan and the County-wide Planning Policies. 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



ZTA-22-419 Staff Report 2022   Page 12 of 12 

3. The proposed amendments are consistent with the goals of the Growth Management Act, Chapter 
26.70A RCW.  

4. The requirements of RCW 43.21C, the State Environmental Policy Act, and WAC 197-11 have been 
satisfied.  

5. The proposed amendments do not adversely affect lands designated as resource lands of long-term 
commercial significance or critical areas in ways that cannot be mitigated.  

6. The required State agency review with the Department of Commerce (COM) and other State 
agencies was completed through the review of Leavenworth’s adoption process. The County also 
sent a notice to the Department of Commerce for a 60-day review prior to Board of County 
Commissioner adoption. 

7. Public notice was provided pursuant to Chelan County Code Title 14.  

8. The adoption of these amendments is in the best interest of the public and furthers the health, safety, 
and welfare of the citizens of Chelan County.  

H. Recommendation 

The Chelan County Planning Commission recommended approval of these Amendments (with the 
exception of removing reference to 18.42.030 in City of Leavenworth Ordinance #1654) on October 26, 
2022. Adoption of the proposed amendments aligns with countywide planning policies, county planning 
policies, and the 1997 interlocal planning MOU and RCW 36.70A.100. Land use changes are not in 
conflict with Chelan County planning policies and proper public notice procedures have been followed. 
Please refer to Attachment 6 for the full text of each amendment, along with SEPA documentation. 
Suggested findings of fact and conclusions of law are included above in sections F and G.  

The Chelan County Board of County Commissioners may make a motion to approve or deny the 
proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendments, pursuant to Chelan County Code Section 14.10.050. Staff 
recommends: 

A. Move to approve the proposed Leavenworth Urban Growth Area Amendments, 
given file number ZTA-22-419, based upon the findings of fact and conclusions of 
law contained within this January 31, 2023 report. 

I. Attachments 

1. SEPA Determination, signed October 12, 2022 

2. Agency and Public Comments (none at time of staff report issuance) 

3. 60-day Review Acknowledgment Letter from WA Dept. of Commerce 

4. File of Record 

5. Planning Commission Recommendation 

6. Full text and SEPA documentation for Leavenworth Ordinances 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 1 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

BEFORE THE GROWTH MANAGEMENT HEARINGS BOARD 

EASTERN REGION 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

 

CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, a Washington 
municipal corporation, 
 

Petitioner, 
 

v. 
 
CHELAN COUNTY WASHINGTON, a 
Washington municipal corporation, 
 

Respondent. 
 

 
 

CASE No. 23-1-0004 
 

 
FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 

 
SYNOPSIS 

Petitioner City of Leavenworth challenged Chelan County (County) Resolution 2023-

23 that amended the County Comprehensive Plan Map designations and adopted all 

amendments from the City of Leavenworth (City) Development regulations for its Urban 

Growth Area (UGA) (ATA-22-419) with the exceptions of Resolutions 1650 and 1651, 

leaving RL 10 and RL 12 zoning designations in the City UGA intact. Petitioner charged 

that in doing so, the County abandoned interjurisdictional planning, ignored the Countywide 

Planning Policies (CPPs) and ignored a long standing Memorandum of Understanding 

(MOU) between the County and cities of the County that was in place since 1997.  

The question before the Board is whether the MOU controls in this case. The Board 

determined that the MOU does control in this case and the County’s adoption of Resolution 

2323-23, which excluded Resolutions 1650 and 1651, failed to meet its commitment under 

RCW 36.70A.210 to comply with the County Wide Planning Policies and interjurisdictional 

planning. The Board found in favor of the City, remanding the Resolution in question back 

to the County until such time as they can come into compliance.   

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 2 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
One of the core requirements of the Growth Management Act (GMA) is that planning 

for growth be coordinated between communities and jurisdictions to reconcile conflicts.1 

The County in coordination with the cities within its jurisdiction established CPPs as 

required under GMA2 and a MOU in 1997 which has controlled the management of UGA’s 

in Chelan County ever since. Section 1 of the MOU reads: 

Chelan County will adopt each city’s land use regulations, development 
standards and land use designations for that city’s Urban Growth Area. 

 
The City established a “Housing Task Force” in 2016 to address it obligations to plan 

for housing needs of their community as required in 36.70A.020(4), 070(1) and (2). As part 

of the process a Housing Needs Assessment was conducted in 2017. A City Council 

Housing Committee was established in 2018. The City Planning Commission also began 

work to address the various policies surrounding Housing. The City began to develop a 

Housing Action Plan (HAP) in 2019 and eventually issued a final HAP.  

 Through its deliberations and planning process the City initially considered 

converting RL-12 into RL-103, a new R-8 was eventually adopted in order to provide even 

great density within the UGA. This, along with a number of other recommendations, was 

forwarded to the County for consideration.   

 Ultimately the Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) contrary to County Planning 

Commission and staff recommendations,4 adopted all of the City’s land use regulations and 

development standards, except for those related to the new land use designation and 

rezone contained Ordinances 1650 and 1651. 

 
1 RCW 36.70A.020(11) 
2 RCW 36.70A.210 
3 The RL-12 zone (12,000 square foot minimum lot size) into RL-10 (10,000 sf minimum lot size). 
4 Index 94-105, Chelan Cnty. DCD 2022 Comprehensive Plan Amendment Staff Report, at 12. 
See Index 5 (County Planning Commission transmittal to BOCC) at 5-15. (At the recommendation of staff, the 
Planning Commission did not adopt one Leavenworth code provision in Ordinance 1654 that merely 
identified other places in the city code that supported affordable housing. That provision is not a 
development standard and is not at issue in the appeal.). 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 3 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

 

II. STANDARD OF REVIEW 
Comprehensive plans and development regulations, and amendments to them, are 

presumed valid upon adoption.5 This presumption creates a high threshold for challengers 

as the burden is on the petitioners to demonstrate that any action taken by the County is 

not in compliance with the Growth Management Act (GMA).6 The Board is charged with 

adjudicating GMA compliance and, when necessary, invalidating noncompliant plans and 

development regulations.7  

 The scope of the Board’s review is limited to determining whether a County has 

achieved compliance with the GMA only with respect to those issues presented in a timely 

petition for review.8 The Board is directed to find compliance unless it determines that the 

challenged action is clearly erroneous in view of the entire record before the Board and in 

light of the goals and requirements of the GMA.9 

III. BOARD JURISDICTION 
The Board finds the Petition for Review was timely filed, pursuant to 

RCW 36.70A.290(2). The Board finds the Petitioner has standing to appear before the 

Board, pursuant to RCW 36.70A.280(2)(a) and (b) and RCW 36.70A.210(6).  

In its Response Brief, Respondent challenges the Board’s jurisdiction over 

Petitioner’s claims.10 Thus, the Board addresses whether it has the authority to determine 

said claims before reaching the merits of the issues presented in Petitioner’s Prehearing 

Brief. RCW 36.70A.280(1)(a) governs matters subject to Board review. As relevant here, it 

 
5 RCW 36.70A.320(1). 
6 RCW 36.70A.320(2); See also Lewis Cnty. v. Hearings Bd., 157 Wn.2d 488, 497 (2006); Dep’t of Ecology v. 
PUD 1, 121 Wn.2d 179, 201 (1993); King Cnty. v. CPSGMHB, 142 Wn.2d 543, 561 (2000).           
7 RCW 36.70A.280, RCW 36.70A.302. 
8 RCW 36.70A.290(1). 
9 RCW 36.70A.320(3). In order to find the County’s action clearly erroneous, the Board must be “left with the 
firm and definite conviction that a mistake has been committed.” Dep’t of Ecology v. PUD 1, 121 Wn.2d 179, 
201 (1993). 
10 Resp’t Br. at 14-16. The Board notes that Chelan County did not file a motion to dismiss for lack of subject 
matter jurisdiction by the May 26, 2023, deadline set forth in the Board’s Amended Prehearing Order for 
dispositive motions in this matter. See WAC 242-03-555, (Dispositive Motions).  

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 4 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

states that the Board “shall hear and determine only those petitions alleging” that “…state 

agency, county, or city planning under [Ch. 36.70A RCW] is not in compliance…”“…with 

the requirements of [Ch. 36.70A RCW], [Ch. 90.58 RCW] as it relates to the adoption of 

shoreline master programs or amendments thereto, or [Ch. 43.21C RCW] as it relates to 

plans, development regulations, or amendments, adopted under RCW 36.70A.040 or [Ch. 

90.58 RCW].11 

 

In other words, the Board’s subject matter jurisdiction encompasses petitions 

alleging that local government planning under the Growth Management Act (GMA) is not in 

compliance with: “(1) the requirements of the GMA; (2) the Shoreline Management Act as it 

relates to shoreline master programs and amendments thereto; or (3) the [State 

Environmental Policy Act (SEPA)] as it relates to plans, development regulations, or 

amendments adopted under the GMA or the Shoreline Management Act.”12 

Respondent argues that the clear language of RCW 36.70A.280(1)(a) bars 

Petitioner’s appeal because “it is not a challenge of an adopted regulation.”13  

 

The Board disagrees. While Respondent is correct that the Board has generally 

held that it lacks authority to review challenges to local government decisions that do not 

adopt or amend comprehensive plans or development regulations under RCW 

36.70A.280(1), exceptions to this rule exist.14 Specifically, the Board may review a county’s 

decision not to adopt a comprehensive plan amendment or development regulation “when 

by such a denial the jurisdiction fails to fulfill an expressed, explicit mandate—either from 

 
11 RCW 36.70A.280(1)(a). See also WAC 242-03-025(1)(a), (discussing subject matter jurisdiction).  
12 Samuel W. Plauché & Amy L. Kosterlitz, Road Map to the Revolution: A Practical Guide to Procedural 
Issues Before the Growth Management Hearings Boards, 23 Seattle U. L. Rev. 71, 77 (1999). 
13 Resp’t Br. at 15. 
14 Indeed, Respondent expressly acknowledges the exception, stating that the “not in compliance” language 
set forth in RCW 36.70A.280(1)(a) “[c]learly…could be used if a county failed to adopt a Comprehensive Plan 
or necessary elements within the plan.” Resp’t Br. at 15. See also id., (noting that “[t]he Board's power clearly 
encompasses review of County inaction in some circumstances.”). 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 5 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

the GMA or the [jurisdiction’s] own [c]omprehensive [p]lan.”15 Petitioner’s key contention 

here is that the County violated the interjurisdictional planning requirements of the GMA 

when, contrary to the MOU for UGA planning negotiated in 1997, Resolution 2023-23 

rejected Leavenworth Ordinances 1650 and 1651.16 Thus, the primary question for the 

Board is whether the County’s refusal to adopt City Ordinances 1650 and 1651 fails to fulfill 

an expressed, explicit mandate set forth in either the GMA or the Chelan County 

Comprehensive Plan. 
The Board first turns the threshold element of this question: namely, the source of 

the expressed, explicit mandate which the Petitioner alleges to be violated. Petitioner 

argues that the 1997 17 As cited to the Board, the plain text of the County’s current 

Comprehensive Plan provides: 

The remaining unincorporated areas of the County within the urban growth 
area boundaries are covered by the city comprehensive plans. Consistent with 
the County Wide Planning Policies, and a Memorandum of Understanding with 
the cities, the County has committed to coordinated planning to regulate the 
unincorporated areas of the cities [sic] urban growth areas.18 
 

As shown above, the current Chelan County Comprehensive Plan incorporates and relies 

upon the 1997 MOU to direct planning within the County’s unincorporated UGAs. Further, 

the Record shows that, consistent with the Chelan County Comprehensive Plan, that 

County Planning Staff in fact relied upon the 1997 MOU to recommend that both the 

County Planning Commission and BOCC adopt of Leavenworth Ordinances 1650 and 

 
15 Cainion v. City of Bainbridge Island, GMHB No. 10-3-0013, Order on Mot. To Dismiss (January 7, 2011) at 
2 (citing Orchard Reach v. City of Fircrest, CPSGMHB Case 06-3-0019, Order of Dismissal (July 6, 2006) at 
5; Tacoma v. Pierce Cnty., CPSGMHB Case 99-3-0023c, Order of Dismissal (Mar. 10, 2000); Port of Seattle 
v. Des Moines, CPSGMHB Case 97-3-0014, Final Decision and Order (Aug. 13, 1997)). 
16 See Petr’s Prehr’g Br. at 6, (citing RCW 36.70A.210, RCW 36.70A.100, RCW 36.70A.010, and 
RCW 36.70A.020(11)).  
17 Pet’r’s Prehr’g Br. at 8. 
18 Id. at 8, n. 40 (emphasis added) (citing Pet’r’s Ex. B at 6 (Dec. 2017 Chelan County Comprehensive Plan, 
Introduction at 3)); Pet’r’s Reply at 3. Note that Petitioner is using the same Exhibit numbers as used in its 
Prehearing Brief. 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 6 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

1651.19 Respondent does not dispute that the MOU is part of and relied on by the Chelan 

County Comprehensive Plan.20 Based on these facts, the Board finds that the 1997 MOU 

is a functional component of the Chelan County Comprehensive Plan that directs County 

planning “to regulate the unincorporated areas of the cities’ UGAs.” 

The next element of the inquiry is whether the 1997 MOU sets forth an expressed, 

explicit mandate that obligates the County to adopt Leavenworth Ordinances 1650 and 

1651. Interjurisdictional planning between county and cities is required under the GMA. 

RCW 36.70A.210 requires counties to develop Countywide Planning Policies (CPPs) in 

cooperation with cities within their jurisdictions to ensure that local comprehensive plans 

are consistent as required by RCW 36.70A.100.21 A CPP “is a written policy statement or 

statements used solely for establishing a county-wide framework from which county and 

city comprehensive plans are developed and adopted pursuant to [the GMA].”22 The 

Supreme Court has recognized that, once adopted, CPPs are binding on local 

governments.23  

While the GMA requires multijurisdictional coordination and cooperation between 

cities and counties, it “does not prescribe a particular process for the county/city 

collaboration and consistency that is promoted by the statute.”24 However, the Board has 

acknowledged that county/city planning agreements (such as MOUs) are a lawful method 

to implement the GMA’s interjurisdictional planning requirements, finding that “County-wide 

planning policies provide only a framework for city/county planning consistency, unless the 

 
19 Index 6-15 (Oct. 12, 2022, Chelan County Planning Staff Report to Chelan County Planning Commission, 
recommending adoption of Ordinances 1650 and 1651); Index 94-105 (Jan. 31, 2023 Chelan County 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment Planning Staff Report to BOCC, recommending adoption of Ordinances 
1650 and 1651).  
20 Pet’r’s Reply at 2. 
21 RCW 36.70A.210(1). RCW 36.70A.100 requires that the comprehensive plan of each county or city “shall 
be coordinated with, and consistent with, the comprehensive plans…of other counties or cities with which the 
county or city has, in part, common borders or related regional issues.”  
22 RCW 36.70A.210(1). 
23 King Cnty. v. Cent. Puget Sound Bd., 138 Wn.2d 161, 176, 979 P.2d 374 (1999). 
24 The Cities of Bothell, Mill Creek, & Lynnwood v. Snohomish Cnty., GMHB 07-3-0026c, Final Decision and 
Order at 29 (Sept. 17, 2007) [hereinafter The Cities] (citing RCW 36.70A.210(1)). See also Spokane Cnty. v. 
City of Spokane, 148 Wn. App. 120, 129, 197 P.3d 1228 (2009) (“The GMA does not require counties and 
cities to enter into joint planning agreements.”). 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 7 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

parties in a particular county agree to a more binding arrangement.”25 A local government 

is required to comply both with GMA-imposed duties and self-imposed duties under the 

GMA.26 

The record shows that Chelan County and its cities developed ten CPPs, which 

were adopted by the Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) on May 26, 1992.27 Two 

Chelan CPPs address planning for UGAs: 

 

· Chelan CPP 2 – “Policies for Promoting Contiguous and Orderly Development 
and the Provisions of Urban Governmental Services to Such Development.”28 

 
· Chelan CPP 6 – “Policies for Joint County and City Planning within Urban 
Growth Areas and Policies Providing for Innovative Land Use Management 
Techniques that May Include Use of Flexible Zoning Processes (i.e. Planned 
Unit Developments, Transfer of Development Rights, Cluster Development 
Density Bonus, etc.)29 
 

Chelan County and the cities of Leavenworth, Wenatchee, Chelan, Cashmere, and Entiat 

signed the MOU on July 8, 1997,30 which “set forth the agreement between the County and 

its cities on adoption and implementation of the unincorporated [UGA] land use regulations 

and development standards.”31 The 1997 MOU itself indicates that local government 

implementation of the MOU’s terms “satisfies Policy #2 and Policy #6 of the County Wide 

Planning Policies.”32 Section 1 of the MOU sets forth the following agreement: 

 

Chelan County will adopt each city’s land use regulations, development 
standards and land use designations for that city’s Urban Growth Area. Where 
the cities [sic] review procedures for implementing land use regulations and 

 
25 The Cities, GMHB 07-3-0026c at 29.  
26 COPAC-Preston Mill Inc. v. King Cnty., GMHB No. 96-3-0013c (FDO, Aug. 21, 1996) (citing Benaroya v. 
City of Redmond, GMHB No. 95-3-0072, (FDO, Mar. 25, 1996), at 22). 
27 Pet’r’s Ex. B at 4. 
28 Pet’r’s Ex. B at 4-5; Pet’r’s Ex. A at 3-4.  
29 Pet’r’s Ex. B at 4-5; Pet’r’s Ex. A at 8-9. 
30 Index 862-64. 
31 Index 862. 
32 Id. 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 8 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

development standards within the unincorporated urban growth areas conflict 
with Chelan County’s review procedures, the County’s procedures shall 
control.33 
 
The Board finds that the above emphasized text—i.e., “Chelan County will adopt 

each city’s land use regulations…”—is clear directional language providing a mandatory 

obligation that  provides a basis for Board review. Chelan County was not required to 

negotiate or enter into the MOU, but chose to do so, thus creating a self-imposed duty 

within its Comprehensive Plan to comply with the MOU’s terms. The MOU is a lawful way 

to implement CPPs #2 and #6. The MOU is a “more binding arrangement,” and by joint 

agreement, constrains the exercise of the County’s planning power for unincorporated 

UGAs. 

Respondent cites a string of previous Board cases holding that local government 

decisions “not to adopt development regulations are not within the jurisdiction of the 

GMHB,” but primarily relies upon a passage from the Board’s determination in Cole v. 

Pierce County in support of this contention.34 The paragraph Respondent attributes to Cole 

is actually found within the Board’s order in Chimacum Heights LLC v. Jefferson Cnty., and 

states:  

 

Denial of a proposed amendment to a Comprehensive Plan does not amount to 
an amendment of the Comprehensive Plan. RCW 20 36.70A.280 grants the 
boards’ jurisdiction to hear and determine only those petitions alleging a 
jurisdiction is not in compliance with the GMA as it relates to the adoption of plans, 
development regulations or amendments of same. If a County, in exercising its 
GMA permitted discretion, does not take action to amend its Comprehensive Plan, 
the Growth Management Hearing Boards cannot over-ride a County decision and 
amend a Comprehensive Plan. Unless required by the GMA, it is in the County's 
discretion to decide to amend its comprehensive plan.35 

 
33 Id. (emphasis added); Pet’r’s Prehr’g Br. at 8 (Petitioner notes that “no such conflicting process is at issue 
here”).  
34 Resp’t Br. at 15, (citing Stafne v. Snohomish Cnty., 174 Wn.2d 24, 32, 271 P.3d 868 (2012); SR 9/US 2 
LLC v. Snohomish Cnty., No. 08-3-0004, (Apr. 9, 2009) at 4; Chimacum Heights LLC v. Jefferson Cnty., 
No. 09-2-0007, at 3 (May 20, 2009); Cole v. Pierce Cnty., No. 96-3-0009c, (July 31, 1996) at 9-10). 
35 Chimacum Heights LLC v. Jefferson Cnty., GMHB Case. No. 09-2-0007, Order on Dispositive Mot. 
(May 20, 2009) at 3-4.. 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 9 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

 

The Board’s holdings in Cole, Chimacum Heights LLC, as well as the other cases 

cited by Respondent in fact contradict the assertion that the Board has concluded that it 

lacks “jurisdiction” to consider denials of comprehensive plan amendments. As the Board 

stated in Cole, a petitioner may have a claim that could properly be brought before the 

Board when a jurisdiction fails to meet a duty imposed by a provision of the GMA or takes 

action [including inaction] under RCW 36.70A.130.36 As the Board held in Chimacum 

Heights excerpt quoted by Respondent, “[u]nless required by the GMA, it is in the County's 

discretion to decide to amend its comprehensive plan.”37 

Contrary to Respondent’s assertion, Petitioner is not merely arguing “that the GMA 

compels the County to adopt their preferred policy through the MOU” or that the “County 

should not have rejected their proposal.”38 Rather, Petitioner makes a prima facie case that 

by refusing to adopt Leavenworth Ordinances 1650 and 1651, the County is failing to fulfill 

an explicit duty set forth within a functional component of the Chelan County 

Comprehensive Plan (i.e., the 1997 MOU). A determination of whether the County has 

complied with this express, self-imposed duty falls squarely within the Board’s jurisdiction 

under the GMA. 

 Respondent’s several arguments that the MOU “does not bind the County” are also 

unpersuasive.39  The Board could find nothing in the Record to suggest that the 1997 MOU 

was only binding upon the County to  “adopt the regulations of Leavenworth in the UGA, 

upon their first adoption.”40 Contrary to Respondent’s unsupported assertion, Section 1 of 

the 1997 MOU unequivocally states that the County will adopt every future development 

 
36 Cole v. Pierce Cnty., GMHB Case No. 96-3-0009c, Final Decision & Order (July 31, 1996) at 11. See also 
Concrete Nor’west v. Whatcom Cnty., GMHB No. 12-2-0007, Order on Mot. to Dismiss (June 25, 2012) at 4 
(citing Cole, GMHB Case No. 96-3-0009c at 11).  
37 Chimacum Heights LLC v. Jefferson Cnty., GMHB Case. No. 09-2-0007, Order on Dispositive Mot. 
(May 20, 2009) at 4 (emphasis added). 
38 Resp’t Br. at 16. 
39 Resp’t Br. at 8.  
40 Id. 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 10 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

regulation in the UGAs proposed by the cities.41 The Record further shows that the County 

understood this provision as an unequivocal obligation.42    

For the above reasons, the Board finds it has jurisdiction over the subject matter of 

the petition pursuant to RCW 36.70A.280(1) 

The Board finds and concludes:   

• The MOU is incorporated in the County’s Comprehensive Plan and in the first 

“Whereas” of Ordinance No. 2023-23.43 

• The MOU states “implementation of this MOU satisfies Policy #2 and #6 of 

the County Wide Planning Policies.”44 Nothing in the record shows the 

County attempted to amend or rescind the MOU since its inception, and the 

County attorney confirmed this in questioning during the Hearing on the 

Merits.  

• The County as a party to the MOU has created a self-imposed duty.45 

• The Board has jurisdiction of the subject matter of this Petition. 

IV. ABANDONED ISSUES 

In its Prehearing Brief, the City of Leavenworth stated that it “is not pursuing Legal 

Issue 4 (public participation) and the Board may consider it abandoned.”46 Accordingly, the 

Board deems Petitioner’s Issue 4 abandoned. 

 

 

 
41 Cite Planning Staff Report, since it recognizes this point. 
42 Pet’r’s Reply Br. at 3, (citing Index 5-6, 8, and 14). The Record also shows that the proceedings leading to 
the adoption of Resolution 2023-23, the County In recommending adoption of Leavenworth Ordinances 1650 
and 1651, the October 2022 and Chelan County Planning Staff 
43 Ex. B (Chelan County Comprehensive Plan) Introduction at 3.; Index 1-4 at 1.  
44 Section 1. MOU, pg 1 of Index 862-864 
45 Id. 
46 Pet’r Prehr’g Br. at 6, n. 28.  

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 11 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

V. ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION 

A. Interjurisdictional Planning Requirements 

Issue 1: Did the County violate the interjurisdictional planning requirements of 
RCW 36.70A.210, RCW 36.70A.100, RCW 36.70A.010, and RCW 36.70A.020(11) when, 
contrary to a negotiated memorandum of understanding for UGA planning, it rejected the 
City’s multi-year planning and public-engagement effort designed to increase housing 
opportunities in the City and UGA?47 

As stated above under the discussion of Board Jurisdiction, the County had a self-

imposed obligation under Section 1 of the 1997 MOU to adopt the City’s land use 

regulations, development standards and land use designations for Leavenworth’s 

unincorporated UGA. The Record shows that Resolution 2023-23 did not adopt 

Leavenworth Ordinances 1650 and 1651, rejecting the City’s new RL 8 designation and 

leaving the RL 10 and RL 12 zoning designations in the Leavenworth UGA intact.48 The 

Board now turns to the question of whether a failure to comply with self-imposed duty (i.e., 

agreement under Section 1 of the 1997 MOU) results in noncompliance with the 

coordination and consistency requirements of the GMA.  

The GMA states that “[i]t is in the public interest that citizens, communities, local 

governments, and the private sector cooperate and coordinate with one another in 

comprehensive land use planning.”49 Coordination between communities is a fundamental 

principle and goal of the GMA.50 As discussed above, comprehensive plans must be 

coordinated between Counties and their Cities within their jurisdiction.51 CPPs, as required 

by RCW 36.70A.210, set a general framework for coordinated land use and population 

planning between the county, its cities, and others to ensure respective comprehensive 

plans are consistent with each other.52 Although not required by the GMA, joint planning 

 
47 Prehr’g Order at 2. 
48 Index 3.  
49 RCW 36.70A.010 
50 RCW 36.70A.020(11) 
51 RCW 36.70A.100 
52 The Cities at 29 (Sept. 17, 2007) 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 12 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

agreements such as the 1997 MOU are a lawful method to implement CPPs.53   

In 1997 the County freely entered into the MOU.54  It has not subsequently been 

amended or annulled, a point that Respondent does not dispute.55 The MOU states, in part: 

Section 1: Chelan County will adopt each city’s land us regulations, 
development standards and land use designations for that city’s Urban Growth 
Area.  

The County’s assertion is stated clearly above in “Section I, Board Jurisdiction” of 

this decision. Their firm assertion is that the interjurisdictional planning requirements of the 

GMA,56 do not require the adoption of every suggested amendment to the Comprehensive 

Plan submitted by the City for their UGAs.57 They also deny any self-imposed duty as a 

party to the MOU. The Board disagrees.  

The Supreme Court’s discussion in King County provides helpful context for how the 

Board should review comprehensive plan provisions that are dictated by CPPs.58 The 

Court addressed whether a CPPs directive requiring a county to include a certain area 

within a UGA was binding under the GMA.59  While recognizing that CPPs are binding once 

adopted, the Court also found that “[t]here is no statutory language immunizing provisions 

of the comprehensive plan from review on the grounds that those provisions are mandated 

by the CPPs.”60 Thus, when a petitioner challenges comprehensive plan provisions that 

arise from CPPs mandating joint county/city planning for UGAs, the Board must review the 

challenged provisions to determine compliance with the GMA. A provision “that blatantly 

violates GMA requirements should not stand simply because CPPs mandated its 

adoption.”61 Note that Chelan County did not argue that the MOU was forcing it to adopt a 

 
53 Id. 
54 Index 862-864. 
55 Pet’r’s Reply Br. at 3.  
56 RCW 36.70A.210, RCW 36.70A.100, RCW 36.70A.010, and RCW 36.70A.020(11). 
57 Respondent Brief at 4.  
58 King Cnty., 138 Wn.2d 161 at 175(County Planning Policies & County Wide Planning Policies are the same 
under GMA).  
59 See id. at 174. 
60 Id. at 176-77. 
61 Id. at 177. 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 13 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

land use regulation that blatantly violated the GMA. No argument presented to the Board 

that the City of Leavenworth’s RL8 zone is non-compliant with the GMA. 

The Board finds and concludes that the Petitioner has carried the burden of proof to 

show that Resolution 2023-23 failed to be guided by and substantively comply with the 

coordination goal set forth in RCW 36.70A.020(11). The Board finds and concludes that 

Resolution 2023-23 does not comply with the interjurisdictional coordination and 

consistency provisions set forth in RCW 36.70A.210 and RCW 36.70A.100. The Board will 

remand Resolution 2023-23 to the County with direction to take legislative action consistent 

with the 1997 MOU to bring it into compliance with the goals and requirements of the GMA. 

B. Other Issues 

Issue 2: Did the County violate the requirements of RCW 36.70A.110 when it 
rejected the City’s proposed amendments that increased densities in the UGA necessary to 
accommodate the urban growth anticipated for the City? 
  

Issue 3: Did the County violate the consistency requirements of RCW 
36.70A.040(3) and RCW 36.70A.070 (preamble, and subsections (1), (2), and (3)), when it 
rejected the City’s proposed amendments, contrary to the County’s Comprehensive Plan 
goals and policies for land uses and UGAs (Goal LU 1 and policy LU 1.5, and Goal LU 5 
and Policies LU 5.1 through LU 5.11), diversity of housing (Goal H 1 and Policy H 1.1, and 
Goal H 2 and Policies H 2.1 through H 2.4), and capital facilities (Goal CF 1 and Policies 
CF 1.2, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.9; and Goal CF 2 and Policies CF 2.2 and 2.3)? 
  

Issue 5: Did the County violate the requirements of RCW 36.70A.120 when it failed 
to conduct its planning activities in conformity with its comprehensive plan when it rejected 
the City’s proposed amendments, and when it failed to follow its public participation 
requirements with respect to the proposed amendments? 
 

The Board has determined that the County has violated the interjurisdictional 

planning and coordination requirements of the GMA and remands Resolution 2023-23 to 

the County for further proceedings in compliance with the 1997 MOU and the 

aforementioned GMA provisions. Compliance with the 1997 MOU and the GMA’s 

interjurisdictional planning requirements obligates the County to (A) address the UGA 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 14 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

planning criteria set forth in RCW 36.70A.110; (B) ensure internal consistency as per 

RCW 36.70A.040(3) and RCW 36.70A.070(1)-(3); and (C) conduct planning activities in 

accordance with RCW 36.70A.120 (including providing further public participation 

opportunities consistent with the Chelan County Comprehensive Plan). As such, the Board  

need not and does not reach the Petitioner’s arguments regarding whether the County’s 

failure to adopt Ordinances 1650 and 1651 results in a failure to comply with 

RCW 36.70A.110 (Issue 2),  internal inconsistencies in violation of RCW 36.70A.040 and 

RCW 36.70A.070 (Issue 3), and failure to conduct planning activities or provide public 

participation opportunities contrary to RCW 36.70A.120 (Issue 5). The issue of the 

County's failure to comply with the interjurisdictional coordination requirements of the GMA 

disposes of the case. 

VI. ORDER 
Based upon review of the Petition for Review, the briefs and exhibits submitted by 

the parties, the GMA, prior Board orders and case law, having considered the arguments of 

the parties, and having deliberated on the matter, the Board finds that Petitioner has met its 

burden of proof demonstrating that the County’s Ordinance 2023-23 failed to comply with 

the GMA, and remands the Resolution to the County to take such action as is necessary to 

come into compliance with the GMA.   

The Board establishes the following schedule for the County to come into 

compliance with the GMA: 

Item Date Due 
Compliance Due April 1, 2024 

Compliance Report/Statement of Actions Taken to 
Comply and Index to Compliance Record 

April 15, 2024 

Objections to a Finding of Compliance April 29, 2024 
Response to Objections May 9, 2024 
Compliance Hearing by Zoom 
Meeting ID:  817 7704 8302 
Passcode: 513869 

May 16, 2024 
10:00 am  

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 

https://eluho-wa-gov.zoom.us/j/81777048302?pwd=emVFMTFIL05xdnRTUlJTTCtVS1crUT09


 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 15 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

Length of Briefs – A brief of 15 pages or longer shall have a table of exhibits and a 

table of authorities. WAC 242-03-590(3) states: “Clarity and brevity are expected to assist 

the board in meeting its statutorily imposed time limits. A presiding officer may limit the 

length of a brief and impose format restrictions.” Compliance Report/Statement of 
Actions Taken to Comply shall be limited to 25 pages, 35 pages for Objections to 
Finding of Compliance, and 10 pages for the Response to Objections.  

SO ORDERED this 3rd day of October, 2023. 

      ________________________________ 
Bill Hinkle, Presiding Officer 
 
____________________________________ 
James J. McNamara, Board Member 
 

      _________________________________ 
Rick Eichstaedt, Board Member 
 

 
Note: This is a final decision and order of the Growth Management Hearings Board 
issued pursuant to RCW 36.70A.300. 62  
 

 
62 Should you choose to do so, a motion for reconsideration must be filed with the Board and served on all 
parties within ten days of mailing of the final order. WAC 242-03-830(1), -840. A party aggrieved by a final 
decision of the Board may appeal the decision to Superior Court within thirty days as provided in 
RCW 34.05.514; RCW 36.01.050. See also RCW 36.70A.300(5); WAC 242-03-970. It is incumbent upon the 
parties to review all applicable statutes and rules. The staff of the Growth Management Hearings Board is not 
authorized to provide legal advice. 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 

JamieM468
Stamp

JamieM468
Stamp

JamieM468
Stamp



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 16 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

Appendix A: Procedural matters 
 

On April 6, 2023, City of Leavenworth (Petitioner) filed a petition for review. The 

petition was assigned case no. 23-1-0004.   

A prehearing conference was held telephonically on April 28, 2023. Petitioner 

appeared through its counsel Andy Lane. Respondent Chelan County appeared through its 

attorney Marcus Foster.   

On July 13, 2023, the City of Wenatchee filed a Motion to Request Amicus Status. 

The Motion was granted and the Board accepted City of Wenatchee’s Amicus brief on 

July 18, 2023.  

The Briefs and exhibits of the parties were timely filed and are referenced in this 

order as follows:  

• Petitioner City of Leavenworth’s Prehearing Brief, July 13, 2023 (Petitioner’s 

Brief) 

• Brief of Respondent, July 28, 2023 (Response Brief) 

• Petitioner City of Leavenworth’s Reply Brief, August 7. 2023 (Reply Brief)  

 
Hearing on the Merits 

  The Hearing on the Merits convened August 16, 2023. The hearing afforded each 

party the opportunity to emphasize the most important facts and arguments relevant to its 

case. Board members asked questions seeking to thoroughly understand the history of the 

proceedings, the important facts in the case, and the legal arguments of the parties. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 



 

 

 

FINAL DECISION AND ORDER 
Case No. 23-1-0004 
October 2, 2023 
Page 17 of 17 

Growth Management Hearings Board 
1111 Israel Road SW, Suite 301 

P.O. Box 40903 
Olympia, WA 98504-0953 

Phone: 360-664-9170 
Fax: 360-586-2253 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
 

Appendix B: Legal Issues 
 

Per the Prehearing Order, legal issues in this case were as follows: 

1. Did the County violate the interjurisdictional planning requirements of   
RCW 36.70A.210, RCW 36.70A.100, RCW 36.70A.010, and RCW 36.70A.020(11) when, 
contrary to a negotiated memorandum of understanding for UGA planning, it rejected the 
City’s multi-year planning and public-engagement effort designed to increase housing 
opportunities in the City and UGA?  

  
2. Did the County violate the requirements of RCW 36.70A.110 when it rejected the 

City’s proposed amendments that increased densities in the UGA necessary to 
accommodate the urban growth anticipated for the City?  

  
3. Did the County violate the consistency requirements of RCW 36.70A.040(3) and 

RCW 36.70A.070 (preamble, and subsections (1), (2), and (3)), when it rejected the City’s 
proposed amendments, contrary to the County’s Comprehensive Plan goals and policies 
for land uses and UGAs (Goal LU 1 and policy LU 1.5, and Goal LU 5 and Policies LU 5.1 
through LU 5.11), diversity of housing (Goal H 1 and Policy H 1.1, and Goal H 2 and 
Policies H 2.1 through H 2.4), and capital facilities (Goal CF 1 and Policies CF 1.2, 1.4, 1.5, 
and 1.9; and Goal CF 2 and Policies CF 2.2 and 2.3)?  

  
4. Did the County violate the public participation requirements of 

RCW 36.70A.020(11) and RCW 36.70A.140 when it informed the public that it was 
continuing a public hearing on the City’s proposed amendments, but abruptly announced at 
the continued hearing that no public testimony would be accepted?  

  
5. Did the County violate the requirements of RCW 36.70A.120 when it failed to 

conduct its planning activities in conformity with its comprehensive plan when it rejected the 
City’s proposed amendments, and when it failed to follow its public participation 
requirements with respect to the proposed amendments?  
  
 
 

Community Development Agenda 3/18/24 


	03-18-24 & 02-19-24 Agenda
	Consent Agenda 3-18-24
	03-12-2024 Minutes
	PCN's Attachments for 03.18.2024
	ADMIN AGENDA
	Lead Clerk Position
	Chelan Boys Basketball Boosters - 2024 LTAC Contract - SIGNED
	Two Rivers Medieval Faire - 2024 LTAC Contract - SIGNED
	Wenatchee Valley Velo Club - 2024 LTAC Contract - SIGNED
	WaTech Services Level Agreement
	ADP9F11.tmp
	ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA
	March 18, 2024


	NR AGENDA
	ES AGENDA
	ES_BOCC Agenda_March18
	CLIHP Grant Authorizatiuon Letter
	Memo - WRC
	WRC_RRH_Contract Amnedment_March2024

	PW Agenda 
	0319
	Contract and Proposal to Commissioners
	2024 Vegetation Spray Contract To Contractor
	ARTICLE 1: GENERAL PROVISIONS
	1.1 Definitions:
	1.2 Intent.
	1.3 Interpretation of the Contract; Order of Precedence.
	ARTICLE 2: SCOPE OF WORK
	ARTICLE 3: CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION
	3.1 County Engineer.
	3.2 Contractor’s Representative.
	If different than the contact information provided in the Proposal, the Contractor shall designate a representative(s) for purposes of communication and administration of the Contract. If the representative, or the contact information changes, the Con...
	3.3 Requests for Information.
	3.4 Time of the Essence.
	3.5 Monitoring the Work.
	3.6 Correction of Work.
	3.7 Assignment or Subcontractors.
	ARTICLE 4: CONTRACTOR
	4.1 Contractor Representations.
	4.2 General Standards and Duties.
	B. In the event that the Contractor is unable to make treatments as directed due to conditions beyond its control, the Contractor shall promptly notify the County in writing of the conditions or occurrences which affect, interfere with, or prevent pro...
	4.3 Contractor’s Supervision and Employees.
	4.4 Independent Contractor.
	4.5 Materials Furnished by County; When Water Is Furnished by Contractor.
	4.6 Working Times and Conditions.
	4.7 Logs, Reports, and Other Records To Be Submitted to the County.
	4.8 Maintenance, Inspection and Retention of Records.
	4.9 Permits, Laws, and Regulations.
	4.10 Deviation from Contract.
	4.11 Equipment.
	4.12 Operations.
	4.13 Material Inventory, Handling, and Monitoring.
	4.15 Contractor’s Responsibility for Protection of Persons and Property.
	ARTICLE 5: CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT
	5.2 County Request for Change Order.
	5.3 Right-of-way Conditions; Extensions of Time Less Than 30 Days.
	5.4 Work by the County.
	ARTICLE 6: DURATION; TERMINATION
	6.1 Duration.
	6.2 Termination.
	ARTICLE 7: PAYMENT
	7.1 Compensation.
	7.2 Applications for Payment.
	ARTICLE 8:  MISCELLANEOUS
	8.1 Indemnification/Hold Harmless.
	8.2 Insurance Requirements.
	8.3 Compensation, Wages, Benefits and Taxes.
	8.4 Nondiscrimination.
	8.5 No Waiver.
	8.6 Dispute Resolution.
	8.7 Headings.
	8.8 Applicable of Law; Venue.
	8.9 Successors and Assigns.
	8.11 Severability.

	24 Chelan County proposal_complete submittal
	24 Chelan County proposal.pdf
	23-24 Certificate - Pollution - Woodland Resource Services, Inc SAMPLE.pdf
	24 WRS WSDA license summary.pdf



	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENDA
	3-19-24 BOCC
	BoCC Resolution for Ord 1651
	ZTA 22-419 BOCC Staff Report RE Ord 1651
	RECOMMENDED MOTION
	These proposals are recommended for adoption. Adoption of the proposed amendments aligns with countywide planning policies, county planning policies, and the 1997 interlocal planning MOU and RCW 36.70A.100. Land use changes are not in conflict with Ch...
	GENERAL INFORMATION
	PROJECT DESCRIPTION – ZTA 2022-419
	CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
	ATTACHMENTS

	ZTA 22-419 Staff Report
	SEPA Environmental Review
	Agency Comments:
	Public Comment:
	60-Day Notice:
	A. Introduction & Background
	B. Chelan County Code Requirements
	(1) The amendment/proposal is necessary to resolve a public land use issue or problem.
	(2) The amendment is consistent with goals of the Growth Management Act, Chapter 36.70A RCW.
	(3) The amendment complies with or supports comprehensive plan goals and policies and/or county-wide planning policies, or how amendment of the comprehensive plans’ goals or policies is supported by changing conditions or state or federal mandates.
	(4) The proposed amendment does not adversely affect lands designated as resource lands of long-term commercial significance or critical areas in ways that cannot be mitigated.
	(5) The amendment is based on sound land use planning practices and would further the general public health, safety and welfare. The comprehensive plan amendment would serve the interests of not only the applicant, but the public as a whole, including...

	C. Procedural Requirements
	D. Ordinance Descriptions
	E.  Staff Conclusions
	F. Suggested Findings of Fact
	G. Suggested Conclusions of Law
	H. Recommendation
	A. Move to approve the proposed Leavenworth Urban Growth Area Amendments, given file number ZTA-22-419, based upon the findings of fact and conclusions of law contained within this January 31, 2023 report.
	I. Attachments

	Ord 1651-2022
	2023-10-03 Final Decision and Order




